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"Our aim is to serve our
Nation by Manufacturing and
Distributing Quality Aluminium
Profiles for Structural and other
Purposes in a more Reliable,
Competitive and Environment
Friendly Manner Leading to
Satisfaction of Customers,
Shareholders and
Employees."

OUR OBJECTIVES

To be the market leader.
To ensure transparency and
accountability.To help our
employees to achieve their real
potential. To provide a
reasonable return to our
shareholders. To increase
the productivity.

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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THE COMPANY PROFILE

Corporate Head Office and Registered Office : BTA Tower, 29 Kemal Ataturk Avenue,
Banani Commercial Area, Dhaka-1213
Fax # 88-02-226603174
e-mail : bta@btaalu.com
Web : www.btaalu.com

Factroy Location : Haritakitala, Kaliakoir, Gazipur.
Date of Incorporation : 18 June 1979
Commercial Production : 8 February 1981 in "Unit-1"

30 September 1990 & 01 May 2003 in "Unit-2"

Principal Business Line : Manufacturing and Marketing of high quality
Aluminium Profiles for doors, Windows, Curtain walls,
partitions, false ceilings, automobiles and railway windows,
tower bolts etc.

Listing Status : Public Listed Company
Stock Exchange Listing : Dhaka and Chittagong
Authorized Capital : 200 Crore Taka
Paid-Up-Capital : Taka 1,277,752,500 as on 30-06-2024
Number of Shareholders : 19,197 on 30th June 2024
Installed Production Capacity : 1,000 Metric Tons per month
Number of Emplovees ¢ 644 excluding casual and piece rated workers.
X (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) j
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

& )
BOARD OF DIRECTORS :
PROF RUBINA HAMID CHAIRPERSON
MRS. SHABANA MALEQUE DIRECTOR
MD. SHARIQUL ANAM NOMINEE DIRECTOR (ICB)
RUHUL AMEEN, FCMA INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
PROF DR. MUHAMMAD MOHIUDDIN (RETD) INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
. oy
7 e 4 i
MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO (acting) | | HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT & COMPLIANCE :
_ SHEIKH JAIDUL ISLAM ) | MD.AZHAR ALI
p 4 & /
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER : il ATDITORS Py
( ZEFEVEREIMAR BAREA ) | KAZIZAHIR KAHN & CO.
P = Chartered Accountants
COMPANY SECRETARY : Home Town Apartments(Flat-C, Level-15)
SHEIKH ASHIQUE RAHMAN 87, New Eskaton Road, Dhaka- 1000,
. 2
b -y
" BANKERS : v ~
Rupali Bank Limited, Local Office, Dhaka. COMPLIANCE AUDITORS:
Mercantile Bank Limited, Banani, Dhaka. JASMIN & ASSOCIATES
Shahjalal Tslami Bank Ltd, Banani, Dhaka Chartered Secretaries
BRAC Bank Limited, Banani, Dhaka 55/B Noakhali Tower (10th Floor)
Pubali Bank Limited. Banani. Dhaka Suite: 11-F, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000.
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited, Banani, Dhaka o i
- Exim Bank Limited, Gulshan, Dhaka y ~
- ~ REGISTERED OFFICE :
LEGAL ADVISOR : 29 Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani C/A,
DR. HAMID & ASSOCIATES Dhaka-1213
House # 46, Road # 7 F”"{_:TQRY ; R .
Block-G, Banani, Dhaka-1213 Haritakitala, Kaliakoir, Gazipur.
L 7 N =
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

Date : 15 December, 2024

The Shareholders
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms

Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC.
Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC.

Subject : Annual Report for the Period 01.07.2023 to 30.06.2024

Dear Sir (s) :
We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report containing amongst others, Audited Financial
Statements for the period 01-07-2023 to 30-06-2024 along with notes thereon and Director’s Report

for your record/necessary measures.

Thank you.

Sincerely Yours

SHEIKH ASHIQUR RAHMAN

Company Secretary

(_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED

NOTICE OF THE 45th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to all the Members of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. that the 45th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of
the members of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 31 December 2024 at 11:30 am by using Hybrid System in combination
of physical presence at Trust Milonayaton, 545, Old Airport Road, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka 1206, Bangladesh and also using
digital platform at the link: https://bdthaialudSth.hybridagmbd.net to transact the following businesses and (o adopt necessary
resolutions:

Ordinary Business:
I. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024 together with

Directors’ Report and Auditors” Report thercon,
2. To declare the dividend for the year ended on 30 June 2024 as recommended by the Board of Directors,
3. To elect/re-elect Director(s) of the Company.
4. 'To appoint/ reappoint Independent Director(s) of the Company.
5. To appoint/ reappoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ended on 30 June 2025 and to fix their remuneration.
6. To appoint Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors for the year ended on 30 June 2025 and to fix their remuneration,
Special Business:
|, To change the registered name of the company to ‘Bangladesh Thai Aluminium PLC’ from *Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.'
"Resolved that the proposal of changing the registered name of the company to ‘Bangladesh Thai Aluminium PLC from
‘Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd." in accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 (amendment up to 2020} as well as amendment

in the relevant clauses of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company be and is hereby approved subject to
approval of shareholders and regulatory authorities.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
]

Dated : December 09, 2024 v i

29 Kemal Ataturk Avenue SHEIKH ASHIQUR RAHMAN
Banani C/A, Dhaka-1213 Company Secretary
NOTES :

* The Board recommended 0.25% cash dividend to the shareholders other than sponsors & promoters for the year
ended 3(th June, 2024.

» Members whose name appeared in the Member's/ Depository Register as on Record Date i.e. December 15, 2024
will be eligible to attend/participate and vote in the 45th AGM.

¢ A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting and take part in the
proceedings thereof on his/her behalf. The scanned copy of "Proxy Form" duly signed and affixed with BDT 100
revenue stamp must be sent through email to Company's Share Department at btasharel 990@ gmail.com
deposited at the Office of the Company no later than 72 hours before commencement of the AGM.

¢ The Corporate Shareholders need to send their authorization letter to join the meeting of the Company at least
72 hours before the commencement of the AGM.

o The Sharcholders will join the Hybrid AGM through the link: hitps://bdthaialu4d5th.hybridagmbd.net The
Shareholders will be able to submit their questions/ comments and vote electronically 72 (Seventy-two) hours
before commencement of the AGM and also during the AGM. For logging into the system, the Shareholders
need to put their 16-digit Beneficial Owner (BO) ID or Folio Number and other credentials as proof by visiting
the said link.

¢ Pursuant to the BSEC Notification No, BSEC/CMRRCDY2006-158/208/Admin/8] dated June 20, 2018, soft
copies of the Annual Report 2024 along with the Proxy Form and Notice of the AGM will be sent to the
Members’ respective email address available as per CDBL record. The Annual Report will be available in the
Company’s website at: www.btaalu.com

« As per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Circular No.SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/154 dated
October 24, 2013, “no benefit in cash or kind, other than in the form of Dividend (i.e. No Food/Box/Gift Coupon
etc.)” 1o be distributed at the AGM.

% (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) e
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MESSAGE FROM THE HON'BLE CHAIRPERSON

Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu Alaikum,

I welcome you all with great pleasure on behalf of our Board of Directors in the 45th Annual General Meeting
of Bangladesh Thai Alumimium Limited. [ would like to take this opportunity to present before you the Annual
Report together with the Audited Financial Statements and Auditors Report thereon for the financial year ended
on June 30, 2024 for your kind consideration and approval.

Dear Shareholders,

BTA started its journey in 1979 as a pioneering manufacturer of Aluminium profiles for doors, windows, curtain
walls etc. in Bangladesh. It was the dream child of our late Founder Chairman Col. (Retd.) A. Maleque psc
imbued with patriotic zeal. He set up this industry with a view to save the woody green nature through the use
of Aluminium profiles. Undoubtedly our organization has been saving trees to a great extent since long,
otherwise there would have been no trees by now in our country as it would have been used-up for making
wooden doors and windows. Due to the fast growing economy, the demand for Aluminium has increased. BTA
is catering to the demand for doors and windows for building and other sectors.

Dear Shareholders,

We believe that you will be definitely agreeable with us that we are always working keeping in mind the interest
of our honorable Shareholders. In the current year we could not earned desired level of net profit due to the high
inflationary environment of our country, stemming from energy crisis, depreciation of Taka, concerns for

X (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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adequacy of Dollar reserve etc. Every business from small to large have been adversely affected. You are also
aware that impact of Ukraine-Russia War had an adverse impact in the price increase of raw materials in the
International market as well as in our local market. As a result our sales & net profit was negatively impacted.

Despite of these unavoidable conditions to protect the interest of the general shareholders, we declared 0.25%
cash dividend to our general shareholders excluding sponsor & promoter shareholders for the year ended June
30, 2024 from the retained earning. We believe that in the future it will be possible to pay oft more dividend for
our shareholders by our joint effort Insha Allah.

Dear shareholders,

You will be glad to know that, we have revalued the assets of the company by the renown revaluer company M/s Anil
Salam Idnis & Co. Chartered Accountants. Consequently the assets value of our company has been increased in big
volume. As a result the net asset value (NAV) per share has been increased than the (NAV) per share of Last year.

Dear Shareholders,

As you were informed earlier that we have reorgamized our sales team and distribution channel for distribution of
our products upto upazilla level. We hope that with your cooperation, valuable advice and direction we will be
able to raise our Company to the new heights in future by overcoming all odds.

Dear Shareholders,
We on behalf of our Board of Directors, employees and different related institutions wish you all the best and
express our gratitude for your kind presence in this AGM.

Thanking you,

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited

Bobowo forid

Prof. Rubina Hamid
Chairperson

Dhaka, Bangladesh

Date : December 08, 2024.

X (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) e
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Statement of the Managing Director and CEO
Dear Shareholders,

Assalamu Alaikum, Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. is the Pioneer Aluminium extrusion Company in
Bangladesh. The Company started the journey since 1979 with world class machineries, technologies,
trained, experienced engineers, technicians from overseas . We have been supplying Aluminium profiles
for buildings construction in Government & Private Sector, as well as in automobile manufacturing sector
& different industrial sector which includes solar electricity production plant also.

Our economy faced challenge in 2023 due to different reasons. Enhanced of Dollar price, inflation,
difficulties to open L/C to import the raw materials, Slow growth of building construction in Government
& Private sector. Despite the challenges, we are trying our best to over come the situation & to increase
our business turn over.

I extend my gratitude & thanks to Board members for their continued trust & support in our management
team, to valued share holders for their confidence. 1 also thanks to our employees whose hard work &
dedication have been driving force behind our accomplishments.

On behalf of the Board, I also express my heartfelt thanks to BSEC, DSE, CSE,NBR other Govt.
authorities, our valued Customers , Suppliers, Banks, Financial Institutions for their constant support.

Wish you wonderful time & successful year ahead.

Best regards

W—L&y\gﬁ’
Sheikh Jaidul Islam

Managing Director & CEO (acting)
Date: December 08, 2024

X, (Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )} /
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FINANCIAL DATA FOR FIVE YEARS
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Figures in Lac Taka

SL. No. PARTICULARS nw%.‘llﬂlg-aﬁgo.m m.ﬁgﬂﬂm ulmz.'gzml;ugt%n ul.u‘zrgz%zuﬁ%mu nwzr'ga.z?uﬁuq
01 Net Sales (Volume) 7,624 12,036 11,670 9,349 6,028
02 Gross Profit (Volume) 2,896 4,659 2,600 1,769 1.518
03 Net Profit before tax 457 2,113 43 (583) (1,032)
04 Net Profit after tax 262 1,603 24 (666) (1,081)
05 Current Assets 29,861 32,240 32,548 31,827 32,496
06 Net Current Assets 14,162 17,228 19,104 19,132 19,310
07 Fixed Assets (WDV) 28,167 27,750 27916 27,400 31,141
08 Revaluation Surplus 12,071 12,353 12,682 12,577 17,011
09 Reserve & Surplus 196 196 196 196 196
10 Authorized capital 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
11 Issued & paid up capital 12,405 12,778 12,778 12,778 12,778
12 Number of shares @Tk 10/- [124,053,641 127,775,250 (127,775,250 | 127,775,250 |127,775,250
13 Earning per share after tax in Taka 0.21 1.25 0.02 (0.52) (0.85)
14 Gross profit percentage 37.98% 3I8.T71% 22.27% 18.92% 25.18%
15 Dividend declared/proposed  |3%(C) &3% (B)| 29%(C) NIL NIL #0.25%(C)

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )

* Dividend has been Proposed for all Shareholders other than Sponsors and Promoters.
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Director’s Report to the Shareholders
Dear Shareholders,
In terms of provisions of section 184 of the Companies act 1994 and BSEC’s notification
No.SEC/CMRRECD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Dated-03 June 2018 and IAS-1 (International Accounting
Standard-1) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh, it is the pleasure of the
Board of Directors to submit their report together with the audited financial statements of the company
for the year ended June 30, 2024 in the following paragraphs:

Principal Activities :

Manufacturing and sales of Aluminium profiles as a substitute of wooden structures for doors,windows,
curtain walls, false ceilings, workstations and many other interior and exterior works.

Industry Out Look and Possible Future Development :

Due to the fast growing economy, the demand for aluminium has increased globally . BTA is catering
to the demand of doors and windows for building and other sectors. Meanwhile in order to cater to the
increased demand of BTA products we have doubled the capacity by installing new machinery.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Statements :

The statement of the directors responsibilities has been elaborated in this report page no. 34
Segment on Product wise Information :

We produce a single product named Aluminium Profiles, so it is not applicable to us.

Financial Result (Sales & Profit 2023-2024 2022-2023
Turnover 602,823,822 034 891,145
Cost of Goods Sold 451,015,435 758,009,740
Gross Profit 151,808,387 176,881,405
Administrative , Selling & Financial Expenses 256,649,647 236,414,611
Operating Profit (104,841,260) (59,533,206)
Other Income 1.645.283 1,220,515
Net Profit before Tax & WPP & WF (103,195,977) (58,312,691)
Workers Profit Participation and WF - _

Net Profit before Tax (103,195,977) (58.312.691)
Tax Expenses 4,890,554 8,296,106
Net Profit after Tax (108,086,531) (66,608,797)

N

(_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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Risk and Concerns :

International price fluctuation of Aluminium ingot together with exchange rate fluctuation may
adversely affect our profitability. We have highly experienced professional team to combat such situation.
Our product do not have negative impact on environment as we maintain highly effective ETP
(effluent treat plant).

COGS, Gross /Net Profit Margin Analysis:

COGS of the company was Tk. 451.02 million in the current year compared to Tk. 758.01 million in
the previous year.

COGS to sales ratio was 74.81% Gross profit stood at Tk. 151.808 million compared to Tk. 176.881
million of previous year.

Net loss was Tk 108.09 million in the current year compared to net Loss Tk 66.69 million in the Previous year.

Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions are disclosed in note no. 8.01 and 20.00 of notes to the Financial Statements.

Utilization of Proceeds from Public Issue

During the period there was no such event of raising fund from public issue.

Variance Within the Quarterly Financial Statement and Annual Financial Statements :
There was no such significant variance.

Remuneration to Directors Including Independent Directors:

It has been shown in note no. 26.01 of notes to Financial Statements.

Fairness of the Financial Statements (F/S):

The F/S together with the notes thereon have been drawn in conformity with the relevant laws of the
country. These statements presents fairly the company’s state of affairs, the results of it’s operation, cash
flow and changes in equity .

Proper Books of Accounts:

Proper Books of Accounts of the company have been maintained.

Adaptation of Proper Accounting Policies and Estimates:

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements
and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment .

- (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) /
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Application of IAS/IFRS :

All the above standards as applicable in Bangladesh have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements and any deviaton there from has been adequately disclosed.

Internal Control :

The company maintains a sound Internal control system which gives reasonable assurance against any
material mis-statement. The Internal control system is regularly monitored by the audit committee in
each meeting .

Interest of Minority Shareholders :

Minority shareholders’ Interest are always looked after by the Board.

Going Concern:

Based on the available information on the future, the Directors consider that the company have adequate
resources to continue their operation for the foreseeable future.

Significant Deviation from Last Year’s Operating Result:

This year Turnover & Net Profit decreased than last year.

Key Operating and Financial Data :

A summarized Key operating and financial data for the five years is set out in page 10 of the Annual Report.

Dividend :

The Board of Directors in its board meeting held on 24 November, 2024 has recommended 0.25% Cash
dividend to the shareholders other than Sponsors & Promoters for the year ended 30th June, 2024 subject
to approval of the shareholders at the ensuring 45th Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Interim Dividend :

Mo Dividend has been declared as Interim Dividend.

Board and committee meetings and attendance:

During the year total 4 (four) Board meetings, 4 (four) Audit committee meetings and 1(one) NRC
meeting were held.

- (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) /
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Pattern of Share Holdings and Name Wise Details as on 30/06/2024

a) Parent /Subsidiary/Associate Company and related parties------ Nil.
b) Share holding status of Directors, CEO/MD, Company Secretary, CFO, Head of Internal Audit &
Compliance and their Spouses and minor children as under :

Name Designation No of shares | %%of holding
Prof. Rubina Hamid Chairperson 29.86,150 2.34%
Mrs. Shabana MH[E{.{U& Director 2555710 2. 00%
ICB Director 1,76,65,006 13.83 %
Ruhul Ameen, FCMA Independent Director Nil Nil
Pro. Dr. Muhammad Mohiuddin (Retd)| Independent Director Nil Nil
Sheikh Jaidul Islam MD & CEO (acting) Nil Nil
Ashim Kumar Barua Chief Financial Officer MNil Nil
Sheikh Ashiqur Rahman Company Secretary Nil Nil
. . Head of Internal Audit & . :
Md. Azhar Ali Compliance Nil Nil
c) Executives -----------emmmmmemeemeeeeeeeeeeeeee Nl
d) Shareholders holdings 10% or more in the company.
Name No. of Shares % of holding
ICB 1,76,65,006 13.83 %

Directors’ Election :
In terms of Articles 118 of Articles of Association Mrs. Shabana Maleque retires from the Board in this
AGM and being eligible offered herself for re-election.

Her short resume is as under :

Mrs. Shabana Maleque is a Bangladesh National. She is also Director of Rahat Real Estate &
Construction Limited. Mrs. Maleque has a Bachelor of Arts Degree and has vast practical Experience in
business. She plays an active role in the audit and administration of the company. She has travelled to
many countries of the world, which has enriched her knowledge.

Independent Director Appointment :

The Board reappointed Mr. Ruhul Ameen FCMA as an Indipendent Director of the Company for a
period of 3 years. Decision in this respect will be taken in the 45th AGM

\ (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) j
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Mr. Ruhul Ameen FCMA as Independent Director.
His Short resume 1s as Under :

Mr. Ruhul Ameen, M.Com. FCMA is a senior Fellow member of the institute of Cost & Management
Accountants of Bangladesh. Mr. Ameen held many senior management positions in local, multinational
and foreign companies having excellent track record of success for more than 35 years throughout his
career of which last 25 years was with Excelsior Shoes Ltd. The Company is listed in the Stock
Exchange in Bangladesh and is the Country’s 1st 100% Export oriented sports shoes manufacturing
and exporting company in CEPZ, Chittagong, Bangladesh. For his outstanding contribution to the
company, he was honored to have been positioned as Dy. Managing Director in the year 1995 and
contributed superbly with the entire satisfaction of the Management and the Board of Directors of
Excelsior Group. Mr. Ruhul Ameen has extensively toured USA, Canada, Europe and Asia. Apart
from his outstanding professional worth, he was the first elected President of the Bangladesh Sports
Shoes manufacturers and Exporters Association (BSSMEA) until 2014,

Management Discussion and Analysis:

Management Discussion and Analysis has been highlighted in the Chairperson’s Message, Managing
Director’s Statement and in Directors’ Report.

Declaration by the CEO and CFO :
Declaration by the CEO and CFO has been given on page no. 17

Corporate Governance :

Corporate Governance is the system by which Companies are directed and controlled, this system may
be considered as most vital part for efficient management. This system ensures better transparency and
correct presentation of financial information to the shareholders and other authorities concerned.

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 6 (six) members, is the supreme authority in the Management
of the Company. The said Board takes all the decisions as regard to the business policy, administrative
and financial control, as and when required, in the interest of the company,

4 (Four) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period 01.07.2023to 30.06.2024 under
review. Presence of the directors in the meeting as under :

Name of Directors Status Meetings Attended
Professor Rubina Hamid Chairperson -+
Mrs. Shabana Maleque Director 4
Ruhul Ameen, FCMA Independent Director 4
Prof.Dr.Muhammad Mohiuddin (Retd), Independent Director 4
Md. Shariqul Anam Nominee Director (ICB) 4

Appointment of Auditors :

FAMES & R Chartered Accountants Appointed in the Board Meeting as Statutory Auditors of Bangladesh Thai
\Aluminium Limited for the year 2024-2025 (Financial Year). Decision in this respect will be taken in the 45th AGM.

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Litd. ) J
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Appointment of Corporate Covernance Compliance Auditors:

The Existing Compliance Auditors’ Jasmin & Associates appointed in the Board Meeting as
Compliance Auditors of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. for the year 2024-2025. Decision in this
respect will be taken in the 45th AGM.

Employees :

On the pay role of the Company there were total 644 employees as on 30.06.2024. The Company has
implemented Workers Profit Participation Fund for their employees as per Bangladesh labour Act 2006

(Amended in 2013).

Health and Safety :

The Company provides a healthy and risk free environment for its employees .

Ethical Code of Conducts :

The company maintains ethical code of conducts and all the employees are made aware of it and they
abide by it.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations :

The Company was not involved in any activities contravening the Laws and Regulations of the country.
Environmental Protection :

The Company is committed to protect the environmental issues and do not involve in any activity which
is harmful to environment.

Corporate Social Responsibility :

The Company continues to contribute to the welfare of the local communities.

Acknowledgement :

The Company and its Board of Directors would like to extend its foremost regard and appreciation to the
valued Shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company for their persistent support and guidance to
the Company that led to the cumulative achievements. The Board also expresses their gratitude to the
Government of Peoples Republic of Bangladesh, National Board of Revenue (NBR), Registrar of Joint
Stock Companies and Firms (RISC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Central
Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC. (DSE), Chittagong Stock
Exchange PLC. (C5E), the Company’s bankers, and other business partners for their cooperation, posi-
tive support, and guidance. The Company also wishes to express its sincere appreciation to all employees
of BTA for their contribution towards the development of the Company.

We promise that we will continue our journey towards a bright future. We look forward to your continued

support in 2023-24 and the days ahead.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Litd.

YN
Professor Rubina Hamid

Chairperson

Dhaka, Bangladesh
Qme : 28 November, 2024

(_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) j
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{ Annexure-A
[ As per condition no 1 (5) (xxvi)]

Declaration by CEO and CFO

Date: November 24, 2024,

The Board of Directors

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited
29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue

Banani C/A

Dhaka.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2024

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to  the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No.

BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80. Dated June 03,2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange

Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited. for the year ended on June 30, 2024 have
been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis,
in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In this regard, we also certify that:

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2024 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its
members.

Sincerely yours,

NSy o W

Sheikh Jaidul Islam Ashim Kumar Barua
MD & CEO (acting) Chief Financial Officer
\ ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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Chartered Secretaries

55/B Noakhali Tower (10th Floor), Suite : 11-F, Purana Paltan, Dhaka- 1000, www.jasminandassociates.com
E-mail: jasminandassociates®@ gmail.com, jasminmizan |23 @ yahoo.com, Phone : 02-9574125, 01712644440, 01711-076815

Report to the Shareholders of

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited
on Compliance on Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the Compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Bangladesh Thai
Aluminium Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2024, This Code relates to the Motification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management
in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS)
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are
not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after
due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated
in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission except as stated
in the remarks column in Annexure-C;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by
this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies
Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

For: Jasmin & Associates
Chartered Secretaries

—Fhebre

Place :Dhaka Jasmin Akter, FC5
Dated : December 10, 2024 Managing Partner

- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.

For the year ended June 30, 2024

Corporate Governance Compliance Status

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Motification No.SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/
Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance 1969:

(Report under Condition No.9)

Annexure - C
[As per Condition no 1(5) (xoovil)]

—

Condition
Mo,

Title

Compliance Status

Complied

Mot
Complied

Remarks

1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

101)

Board's Size

The number of the Board members of the Company shall not be
less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

1(2)

Independent Directors

1(2)a)

AL least 2(two) directors or one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of
directors in the company’s Board, whichever is higher, shall be
independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to the
next integer or whole number for calculating number of
independent director(s):

Provided that the Board shall appoint at least 1 (one) female
independent director in the Board of Directors of the Company;

\.'I

There are 2 (Two)
Independent Directors
(1D} in the Board and the
appointment of a female
Independent Director
(112} will be completed in
due time

1(2)(b)(i)

Who either does not hold share in the Company or holds less than
one (1%) shares of the total paid up shares of the Company;

\.'I

1(2)(b)(i)

Who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the
company's any sponsor or director or nominaled director or
shareholder of the company or any of its associates, sister concemns,
subsidiaries and parents or holding entities who holds one percent
(1%} or more shares of the total paid-up shares of the company on
the basis of family relationship and his or her family members also
shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company:

1(2)(b)iii)

Who has not been an executive of the company in immediately
preceding 2 (wo) financial years;

1(2)(b)(iv)

Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or
otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary/associated
companies;

1(2)(b)(v)

Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlerment
Centificate) holder, director or officer of any stock exchange;

\.'I

1(2)(b)ivi)

Whe is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director
or officer of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market;

T(2))ivii)

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an
executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned
company's statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal
audit services or audit firm conducting special audit or professional

certifying compliance of this Code;

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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1(2)(b){viii)

Who shall not be an independent director in more than 5 (Five)
listed companies,

v

1(2)(b)ix)

who has not been reported as a defaulter in the latest Credit
Information Bureau (CIB) report of Bangladesh Bank for non-
payment of any loan or advance or obligation to a bank or a
financial institution; and"”

v

1(2)(b)(x)

1(2)(c)

Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral
turpitude.

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting [AGM)

Provided that the Board shall appoint the independent director,
subject to prior consent of the Commission, after due consideration
of recommendation of the MNominalion and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) of the company;

Under Process

1(2)(d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more
than 90 (ninety) days.

v

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period
of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 {one) tenure only:

\I

13)

Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

1(3)a)

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual with
integrity who is able to ensure compliance with financial, regulatory
and corporate laws regulatory reguirements and can make
meaningful contribution to business;

A

(3B

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.100.00
million or any listed company or a member of any national or
international chamber of commerce or registered business
association; or

Y

1(3)(bNii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower
than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or
Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum
paid-up capital of Tk.

100.00 millicn or of a listed company; or

-\I

(3 (i

1(3)(b)iv)

1(3)bHv)

Former or existing official of government or statutory or autonomous
or regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of the national
pay scale, who has at least educational background of bachelor
degree in economics or commerce or business or Law:

Provided that in case of appointment of existing official
as independent director, it requires clearance from  the
organization where he or she is in service; or

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics
or Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the
High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered
Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or Cerlified
Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary or aquivalent qualification;

W

\I

Y

(_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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13)e)

The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b);

1(3)(a)

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be
relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission.

Mo such matter
arasea

1(4)

Duality of chairperson of the Board of Directors and
Managing Director of chief Executive Officer

1(4)z)

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing
Director (MD) andfor Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the company
shall be filed by different individuals;

1{4)(b)

The Managing Director (MD) andfor Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
of a listed company shall not hold the same position in another
listed company;

1{4)(c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the
non-executive directors of the company;

1(4)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities
of the Chairperson and the Managing Director andlor Chief
Executive Officer;

1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves from nonexecutive directors
as Chairperson for that particular Board's meeting; the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes.

1(5)

The Director's Report to Shareholders

1(5)()

An Industry outlook and possible future developments in the
industry;

1(S i}

The Segment-wise or product-wise performance;

1(5)iii)

Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors,
threat to sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

1(5)iv)

A Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net
Profit Margin, where applicable;

1(5)v)

A Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary activities and their
implication (gain or loss);

Mo such matter
argse

1(SHvi)

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a
statement showing amount, nature of related party, nature of
transactions and basis of transactions of all related party
transactions;

1(5)(vii)

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues,
rights issues and/or any other instruments;

\'.

1(5)viil)

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company
goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RFQ),
Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

Mo such matter
arose

1(SHx)

An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between
Quarterly Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements;

1(5Hx)

A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including
independent directors;

1(5)xi)

A statement that the financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer company present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in

equity;

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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1(3)(xii)

A Statement that proper books of account of the issuer Company
have been maintained.

1(5){xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and
that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment;

1(5)(xiv)

A statement that Intermational Accounting Standards (IAS) or
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable
in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed;

1(3)(xv)

A statement that the system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

1(S)(xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from
abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders
acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of
redress;

1(S){xvii)

A statement that there are no significant doubts upon the issuer
company's ability to continue as a going concern. If the issuer
company is not considered to be a going concem, the fact along
with reasons thereof should be disclosed;

Mo such matter
argse

(S )i}

An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's
operating results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and
the reasons thereof should be explained;

1(5){xix)

Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years
shall be summarized;

1(5)(xx)

An explanation on the reasons If the issuer company has not
declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year;

T(5) (i)

Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend;

T(5) (i)

The total number of Board meetings held during the year and
attendance by each director;

(& )xxiii)(a
)

Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related
parties (name-wise details);

(S )xxiii)(b
)

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their
spouses and minar children (name wise details);

1(S)(xxiii){c)

Executives;

1(5){xxiii)(d
)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in
the company (name wise details).

1{5)xxiv)(a)

A brief resume of the director;

1(5)(xxiv)(b)

Mature of his / her experise in specific functional areas;

1(5)(xxiv)(c
)

MNames of companies in which the person also holds the
directorship and the membership of committees of the board;

1(5)(exv)(a)

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial
statements;

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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1(S)xxv)(b)

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly
describing the effect on financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows in absoclute figure for
such changes,

1(S)ev)ic)

Comparative analysis (including efiects of inflation) of financial
performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows
for current financial year with immediate preceding five years
explaining reasons thereof,

1(S)ev)id)

Compare such financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(5)(xxv)(e)

Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country
and the globe;

1(S)xv)(f)

Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements,
explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company;
and

1(S)ev)ia)

Future plan or projection or forecast for company's operation,
performance and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e.,
actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in the next
AGM;

1(5)(oxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEQ and the CFO to the Board as
required under condition Mo. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-A;

(S (avii)

The repart as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions
of this Code as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as
per Annexure-B and Annexure-C;

1(5)xvill)

The Directors’ report to the shareholders does not require to include
the business strategy or technical specification related to products
or services, which have business confidentiality.

1(8)

Meetings of the Board of Directors; The company shall conduct
its Board meetings and record the minutes of the meetings as well
as keep required books and records in ling with the provisions of
the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (B35) as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so
far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of
this Code.

1(7)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members
and Chief Executive Officer

1(THa)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) at condition Mo. G, for the Chairperson of the
Board, other board members and Chief Executive Officer of the
company;

1(7HE)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted
on the website of the company including, among others, prudent
conduct and behavior, confidentiality; conflict of interest;
compliance with laws, rules and regulations, prohibition of
insider trading; relationship with environment, employees,
customers and suppliers; and independency.

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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2

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.

2(a)

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the
holding company shall be made applicable to the composition of
the Board of the subsidiary company;

2(b)

At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the
holding company shall be a director on the Board of the
subsidiary company;

2(c)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall
be placed for review at the following Board meeting of the holding
company,

2(d})

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding
company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of the
subsidiary company also;

2(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the
financial statements, in particular the investments made by the
subsidiary company.

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO),
Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS).

3(1)

Appointment

3(1)a)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEOQ), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer
(CFQ) and a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIACY);

\I

3(1)(b)

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ), Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be
filled by different individuals;

3(1)c)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not
hold any executive position in any other company at the same time:
Provided that CFO or CS of any listed company may be appointed
for the same position in any other listed or non-listed company unde
the same group for reduction of cost or for technical expertise, wit
prior approval of the Commission:

Provided further that the remuneration and perquisites of the said
CFO or CS shall be shared by appointing companies
proportionately;”

3(1)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and
duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the C5;

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEQ, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from
their position without approval of the Board as well as immediate
dissemination to the Commission and stock exchange(s).

3(2)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

The MD or CEQ, CS8, CFO and HIAC of the company shall
attend the meetings of the Board: Provided that the CS, CFO
andfor the HIAC shall not attend such part of a meeting of the
Board which involves consideration of an agenda item relating to
their personal matters.

(Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J/
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3(3)

3(3)(a)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they
have reviewed financial statements for the year and that to
the best of their knowledge and belief:

3(3INali)

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or
omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading; and

3(3apii)

these statements together present a true and fair view of the
company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards and applicable laws;

(3N

The MD or CEQ and CFO shall also cerify that there are, to the
best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation
of the code of conduct for the company's Board or its members,;

y

3(3)c)

rl

The certification of the MD or CEQC and CFO shall be disclosed
in the Annual Report.

Eoard of Directors’ Committee-For ensuring good
governance in the company, the Board shall have at least
following sub-committees:

A1)

Audit Committee; and

\'I

Afii)

Momination and Remuneration Committee

5

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

5(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(1)(a)

The Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee
of the Board of Directors,

S(1)b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in ensuring
that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and in ensuring a good monitoring system
within the business;

5(1)(e)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board of
Directors. The duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set
forth in writing.

y

5(2)

Constitution of the Audit Committee

5(2)(a)

The Audit Committees hall be composed of at least 3 (three)
members;

S(2)b)

The Board of Directors shall appoint members of the Audit
Committee who shall be directors of the Company and shall
include at least 1 (one) Independent Director;

S(2Nc)

All members of the Audit Committee should be “financially literate”
and at least 1 (one) member shall have accounting or related
financial management background and 10 (ten) years of such
experience;

S(2Hd)

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there
is any circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to
hold office before expiration of the term of service, thus making the
number of the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed
number of 3 (three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new
Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or not laten

nsure continuity of the performance of work of the Audit

Elan 60 (sixty) days from the date of vacancy in the Committee to

ommittee;
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-

H2)e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; \

5(2)(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute J
without independent director.

a(3) Chairman of the Audit Committee

a(3Na) The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit .
Committee to be Chairman of the Audit Committee, who shall y
be an independent director;

5(3)b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson
for that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no J
problem of constituting a quorum as required under condition
Mo, 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

8(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the N
Annual General Meeting (AGM):

5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committes

5(4){a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a N
financial year;

S(4Nb) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or two-third of N
the members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is a must.

5(5) Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall:-

5(5)a) Owversee the financial reporting process; )

5(5)b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; )

5(5)c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and J
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance
Report;

S(5)d) Owersee hiring and performance of external auditors; y

5(5)e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of
the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for Ay
approval or adoption;

5(5)f) Review along with the management, the annual financial J
statements before submission to the board for approval;

(SHS)g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly J
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

8(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; Y

S(5)(i) Review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before J
disclosing in the Annual Report;

5(5)() Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the ,
management; N

S(5)(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness

issued by statutory auditors;

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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S(5)(1)

Oversee the determination of audil fees based on scope and
magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for
effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors;
and

5(5)(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering
{IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have
been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document
or prospectus approved by the Commission:

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors

5(6)(@)i)

The Audit Committee shall report on its aclivities to the Board.

}ﬁiﬁliﬂ]{ii]l{ﬂ

Report on conflicts of interests;

Mo such matter arose

?tﬁlialiii]l[b

Suspected or presumed fraud or iregularty or material defect
identified in the internal audit and compliance process or in the
financial statements;

Mo such matter arose

5(6)(a)ii)(c)

Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including
securities related laws, rules and regulations; and

Mo such matter arose

]ﬁiﬁliﬂ]{ii]l{d

Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary
shall be disclosed to the Board immediately;

Mo such matter arose

5(6)(b)

Reporting to the Authorities; If the Audit Committee has reported
to the Board about anything which has material impact on the
financial condition and results of operation and has discussed with
the Board and the management that any rectification is necessary
and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such
finding to the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the
Board for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six)
manths from the date of first reporting to the Board, whichever is
earlier.

Mo such matter arose

(1)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors | Report on
activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report
made to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)ii) above during the
year, shall be signed by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
and disclosed in the annual report of the issuer company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):-

6(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

6(1)(a)

The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (WRC) as a sub-committee of the Board,

6(1)(b)

The MRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination
criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
experiences and independence of directors and top level executive
as well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration
of directors, top level executive;

6(1)(c)

The Terms of Reference (To R) of the NRC shall be clearly set
farth in writing covering the areas stated at the condition No.
6(S)(b).

-

{_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.}
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6(2) Constitution of the NRC

6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including .
an independent director; v

6(2)(b) At least 02 (two) members of the Committee shall be non-executive y!
directors;

G(2He) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by .
the Board; v

G(2)1d) The Board shall have autharity to remove and appoint any member J
of the Committee;

6(2)1e) In case of death, resignation, disgualification, or removal of any
member of the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the .
boardshallfillthevacancywithin180 (one hundred eighty) days of b
occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

B(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Commitlee may appoint or co-opt any
external expert andior member(s) of staff to the Committee as
advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels y
that advice or suggestion from such external expert andfor
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

6(2)(q) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee, "]

B(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without
attendance of at least an independent director; W

Bl2)(i) MNo member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly,
any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, )
other than Director's fees or honorarium from the company.

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC

G(3)(a) The Board shall select1{one) member of the NRC to be [
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an independent N
director;

B(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that
particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular pl
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes,

B(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general .
meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders: ’

6(4) Meeting of the NRC

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year, N

B(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting [

L]
upon request by any member of the NRC;

G(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two third of the members of
the Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an Y
independentdirectorismustasrequiredunderconditionMo.6(2) (h);

G(4)d) The proceedings of each meetling of the NRC shall duly be
recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the 3
next meeting of the NRC.

28
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6(3)

Role of the NRC

6(5)a)

NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the
Board and to the shareholders;

6(S)(bNiNa)

The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run
the company successfully;

B(S)(bNi)b)

The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and
meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

B(SHbNic)

Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company
and its goals;

B(5) (b))

Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age,
gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and
nationality;

-\I

B(5)(b) i)

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who
may be appointed in top level executive position in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and
removal to the Board;

6(S)(bNiv)

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of
independent directors and the Board;

B(5)(b)Hv)

Identifying the company’'s needs for employees at different levels
and determine their selection, transfer or replacement and
promaotion criteria; and

B(S)(b)vi)

Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company's
hurman resources and training policies;

6(S)c)

The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration
policy and the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during
the year at a glance in its annual report.

T

External or Statutory Auditors.

(1)

The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory
auditors to perform the following services of the company, namely:-

701)0)

Appraisal or valuation services or faimess opinions;

7(1)(i)

Financial information systems design and implementation;

T(1 )i

Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records
or financial statements;

(1))

Broker-dealer services;

7(1)(v)

Actuarial services;

T(1)ivi}

Internal audit services or special audit services

7(1){vii)

Any service that the Audit Committee determines,

T(1){viii)

Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate
governance as required under condition No.9(1); and

7(1)(ix)

Wy other service that creates conflict of interest.

-
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7(2)

MNo partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess
any share of the company they audit at least during the tenure of
their audit assignment of that company; his or her family members
also shall not hold any shares in the said company:

73)

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain
present in the Shareholders' Meeting (Annual General Meeting or
Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries of the
shareholders.

Maintaining a website by the Company:-

&(1)

The company shall have an official website linked with the website
of the stock exchange.

8(2)

The company shall keep the website functional from the date of
listing.

8(3)

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on ils
website as required under the listing regulations of the concerned
stock exchange(s).

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance.-

9(1)

The company shall obtain a cerificate from a practicing
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Charlered Accountant or
Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other
than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the
Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

9(2)

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of
this Corporate Govemance Code shall be appointed by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

9(3)

The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the
Annexure-C attached, in the directors’ report whether the company
has complied with these conditions or not.

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminjum Ltd. ) /
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the Period July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024
(As per SEC Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated 20-02-2006
ammended by SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated August 07, 2012)

The Board of Directors of the company constituted the Audit Comittee on 10 April 2016. The Audit
Commitee consists of the following members :

Ruhul Ameen, FCMA Chairman
Prof Dr. Muhammad Mohiuddin (Retd) Member
Mr. Md. Shariqul Anam Member

The scope of the Audit Committee was defined as under :

Carry on a supervisory role on internal audit so that a sound financial reporting system is in place to ensure
proper and adequate internal financial control;

Examine financial records and review the internal audit findings thereon and the statutory auditors’
observations on internal control;

Report to the Board of Directors on internal audit findings from time to time considering significance of
the issue, which has material impact on the financial condition and result of operation including mistakes,
fraud and forgeries and other irregularities to ensure compliance and regularization; and

Review the financial statements prepared for statutory purpose.
Activities carried out during the year ;

Pursuant therefore, the Audit Commitee held four meetings during the period 01.07.2023 to 30.06.2024 and
examined the system of internal control as well as the financial records on the basis of the internal audit
findings thereon and we believe that our such examinations provided a reasonable basis for our opinion that
proper and sufficient care had been taken for maitenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding
the company’s interest and detecting frauds and other irregularities. There were no incidents requiring
report o the Board of Directors in respect thereof.

The Committee also reviewed the financial statements at 30th June, 2024 as audited by Kazi Zahir Khan &
Co. Chartered Accountants and quarterly financial statements for the related periods.

Ruhul Ameen, FCMA
Chairman

Audit Committee of the Board
28 November, 2024

- (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Momination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is a sub-
commitiee of the Board. The NRC assists the Board in
formulating the nomination criteria or policy for determining
gualifications, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of Directors and other top-level executives. The
MRC plays a stewardship role to the management to identify the
Company's needs for human resources at different levels and
to determine their selection, transfer or replacement and
promeotion criteria.

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the NRC have been determined by
the Board, as per the Corporate Governance Code, 2018 (CG
Code 2018) of Bangladesh Securiies and Exchange
Commission, dated June 03, 2018,

Composition

In accordance with CG Code, 2018, the NRC of Bangladesh
Thai Aluminium Limited. comprises Three members, which
include an Independent Director. The Chairperson of the
Committee is an Independent Director of the Company. The
Company Secretary is the Member Secretary of the
Committee.

The current members of the NRC include:
Prof Dr. Muhammad Mohiuddin (Retd), Chairman
Prof, Rubina Hamid, Member

Mrs. Shabana Maleque, Member

Roles and responsibilities

The roles and responsibilities of the NRC are clearly defined
in the terms of reference (ToR). The core responsibilities of
the NRC, among others, are as follows:

MRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable
to the Board and to shareholders

MRC shall oversea, among others, the following matters and
make a report with recommendations to the Board:

Formulating the crteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a Director, and
recommending a policy to the Board relating

to the remuneration of Directors and top-level executives,
considering the following:

The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable
Directors to steward the Company successfully;

The alignment of remuneration to performance is clear and
meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

Remuneration to Directors and top-level executives involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay, reflecting short-
and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals;

Devising a policy on the Board's diversity, taking into
consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background and nationality;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in top-level executive positions,
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend
their appointment and removal to the Board;

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of
Independent Directors of the Board;

Identifying the Company’s needs for employees at different
levels and determining their selection, ftransfer or
replacement and promotion criteria;

Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the
Company's human resources and training policies; and

Developing a succession plan for the Board and top-level
exacutives, and regularly reviewing the plan.

Nomination policy

The NRC shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
gualification, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director in terms of the diversity policy of
the Board, and recommend to the Board hisfher
appointment. For the appointment of top-level executives, a
person should possess adequate

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Litd. )
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qualifications, expertise and experience for the position
helshe is considered for appointment. Further, for
administrative convenience, for the appointment of top-
level executives,

Remuneration policy

The level and composition of remuneration to be paid to
Directors, top-level executives and other employees
shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate suitable individuals. The relationship of
remuneration to performance should be clear and
should encourage meeting of appropriate performance
benchmarks. The remuneration should also involve a
balance between fixed and incentive/performance
related pay, reflecting achievement of short- and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working
of the Company and meeting its goals.

Evaluation criteria

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of
every Director. The Committee shall identify the evaluation
criteria, which will evaluate Directors based on their
knowledge to perdform the role, time and level of
participation, performance of duties, level of oversight and
professional  conduct and  independence.  The
appointment/re-appointment/continuation of Directors on
the Board shall be subject to the outcome of the annual
evaluation process. The Committee shall evaluate
performance of top-level execulives on the basis of
individual KPls. Decisions pertaining to promotion/
continuation of top-level executives shall be subject to the
outcome of the annual evaluation process based on
appropriate performance benchmarks.

Activities of NRC

The NRC carried out the following activities during the
year 2023-2024 ;

Reviewed issues related to the formulation of the
nomination criteria  or policy for  determining
gualifications, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of Directors and top-level execulives.

Reviewed the performance of top-level executives on
the basis of individual KPIs.

Reviewed the criteria for evaluation of perfformance of
Independent Directors and the Board.

Reviewed the Company's need for employees at
different levels and determined their selection, transfer
or replacement and promotion criteria.

Reviewed human resources and training policies.

Reviewed the salary at different levels of the
Company.

Reviewed the appointment of Director of the Company.

Committee meetings and attendance

During the year 2023-2024, the NRC held one meeting,
complying with the requirement of at least one meeting
to be held during the year. The proceedings of the
meeting were recorded in proper minutes and reported
to the Board of Directors.

The number of NRC meetings held and the attendance
by each member during the year 2023-2024 is given
below:

NUMBER
OF NUMBER OF
NAME OF |MEETINGS
POSITION HELD MEETINGS
DIRECTORS WHILE
s MEMBER| ATTENDED
Prof Or. Muhammad|  Independent
Mohiuddin (Retg) | Director and
Chairman 01 01
of the
Committee
Prof. Rubina | Chairperson of the
Hamid Board and
Member of the 01 01
Committee
Mrs, Shabana Director and
Maleque Member of the 01 01
Committee
Appreciation

The NRC expresses its sincere appreciation to the
members of the Board and the management of the
Company for their excellent support and co-operation
extended in helping it discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectively.

(D0

Prof Dr. Muhammad Mohiuddin (Retd)
Chairman

Momination and Remuneration Committee
Movember 28, 2024

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Litd. )
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Directors’ Statement of Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors are:

* Responsible for ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the Company at any time and from which financial statements can be prepared to comply
with the Companies act 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and the Listing Regulations of the Exchanges.

* Required by law to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial period and of the profit or loss for that period;

* Responsible also for ensuring the operation of systems of internal control and for taking reasonable steps o
safeguard the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024, comprising principal statements and supporting notes
are set out in this report. The Directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been consistently applied
in the preparation of financial statements, supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates as
necessary; applicable accounting standards have been followed and the financial statements have been prepared
on the going concern basis.

Going Concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Internal control
The board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the assessments of risks and internal control framework that
operates in Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited and has considered the effectiveness of the system of internal
control in operation in the Company for the vear covered by this report and up to the date of its approval by the
Board of Directors.

Annual Report

The Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2024, comprising the Report of Directors and the Financial
Statements, has been approved by the Board of Directors.

\ ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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Dividend Distribution Policy
OBJECTIVE:

The objective of this policy is to lay down the criteria to be considered by the Board of Directors of the Company
before recommending dividends to its shareholders for a financial year. The policy is framed in compliance with the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Directive dated January 14, 2021.

CRITERIA TO BE CONSIDERED BEFORE RECOMMENDING DIVIDEND:
The Board will consider the following factors before recommending dividend:

Statutory and Regulatory Compliance:

*  The Company shall declare dividend only after ensuring compliance with the regulatory guidelines on
dividend declaration e.g. in line with the directives of the Finance Act, as amended from time to time and or
by fulfilling other restrictions, if there is any, from the regulators like; Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Financial Criteria:
*  Financial performance of the Company for the year for which dividend is recommended.

*  Internal capital planning framework / policy.

*  Dividend payout trends (the dividend payout ratio will be calculated as a percentage of dividend (including
dividend tax) recommended for the year to the net profit for that year).

*  Tax implications if any, on distribution of dividends.
¢ Cost of raising funds from alternate sources of capital.

*  Corporate actions including mergers/demergers, acquisitions and additional investments including expansion
plans and investment in subsidiaries/associates of the Company.

. Such other factors and/or material events which the Company’s Board may consider.

External Factors:
*  Shareholder expectations including individual shareholders

. Macro-economic environment

CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH SHAREHOLDERS MAY OR MAY NOT EXPECT DIVIDEND:

. The Board of the Company may not recommend any dividend if the eligibility criteria for their recommendation
of dividend has not been met by the Company, including any regulatory restriction placed on the Company
on the declaration of dividend or if the Board strongly believes the need to conserve capital for growth or
other exigencies which will be spelt.

Dividend Distribution:

«  Company shall pay off the dividend (cash/stock) to the shareholders within 30 days of declaration or
approval or record date as the case may be.

*  Company shall pay off the cash dividend to the bank account of the entitled shareholder as available in the
BO account maintained with the depository participant { DP), or the bank account as provided by the
shareholder in paper form, through Bangladesh Electronic Funds Transfer Network (BEFTN) or through
bank transfer or any electronic payment system as recognized by the Bangladesh Bank, if not possible

\ through BEFTN. _/
{_ Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ;}
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. Dividend of the margin client of stockbroker or merchant banker shall pay off to the Consolidated
Customer’s Bank Account (CCBA) of the stockbroker or to the separate bank account of the merchant banker
or portfolio manager through BEFTN.

. In case of non-availability of bank account information or not possible to distribute cash dividend through
BEFTN or any electronic payment system, shall issue cash dividend warrant and shall send it by post to the

shareholder.
. Company shall credit the stock dividend to the BO account of the entitled shareholder.

. Company shall follow the directives/circulars in force of the securities regulator, related to dividend
distribution from time to time.

UTILISATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS:

The Company would utilize the retained earnings of the Company in a manner which is beneficial to the interest of
the Company and its stakeholders, including, but not limited to ensuring maintenance of a healthy level of minimum
capital adequacy ratios, meeting the Company’s future business growth / expansion and strategic plans or such other
purpose the Board may deem fit from time to time in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders.

PARAMETERS FOR VARIOUS CLASSES OF SHARES:

Currently, the Company does not have any other class of shares (including shares with differential voting
rights/preference shares) other than equity shares. In the absence of any other class of shares andfor shares with
differential voting rights, the entire distributable profit for the purpose of declaration of dividend is considered for the
equity shareholders.

CONFLICT IN POLICY:

In the event of a conflict between this policy and the extant regulations, the regulations shall prevail.
AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS:

To the extent any change/amendment is required in terms of any applicable law or change in regulations, the
regulations would prevail over the policy and the provisions in the policy would be modified in due course to make
it consistent with law. Such amended policy shall be placed before the Board for noting and necessary ratification.

REVIEW OF POLICY:
The Board of Directors of the Company may review the policy, if the Board proposes to declare dividend on the basis

of criteria in addition to those specified in the policy, or proposes to modify the criteria, it shall disclose such changes
along with the rationale for the same on the Company’s website and in the Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE OF POLICY:

The policy will be available on the Company's website and will also be disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report.

\ {_Eangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.;} -/
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
For the period ended 30 June, 2024

Value added :
30-06-2024 30-06-2023
Turnover and Other Income 604,469,105 936,111,660
Less : Materials and Services 451,015,435 758,009,740
Total 153,453,670 178,101,920
Applications :
Salaries and Benefits to Employees 72,934,694 90,156,979
Interest to Lenders 167,181,709 122,768,618
Dividend to Shareholders 500,000 3,538,829
Contribution to National Exchequer 20,923,798 28,246,291
Growth in the form of Depreciation/ _ _
Retained Earnings (108,086,531) (66,608,797)
Total 153,453,670 178,101,920

{_ Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ;}
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To

The Shareholders of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited (the Company),
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended June
30, 2024 and notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the Financial Position of
the company as at 30 June 2024, its Financial Performance and its Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conduct our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB)
By Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Risk | Our response to the risk
Revenue Recognition
At year-end the reported total Turnover of Tk. | We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of

602,823,822, key controls focusing on the following:

The company generates revenue from the sales of | »  Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design

goods. and operating effectiveness of controls designed to
ensure that revenue is recognized in the appropriate

There is also a risk that revenue may be overstated accounting standards,

junderstated due to the timing differences. » Segregation of duties in invoice creation and

modification and timing of revenue recognition.
We identified revenue recognition as key audit matter | » Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's

as it is one of the key performance Indicators of the accounting policies for revenue recognition and
Company, which give rise to an inherent risk of the compliance of those policies with applicable accounting
existence and the accuracy of the revenue. standards.

% Obtain supporting documentation for sales transactions
recorded either side of year-end to determine whether
revenue was recognized in the current period.

\ { Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. :} j
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= Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recognized
during the vear with the sale invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation.

Critically assessing manual journals posted to revenue
to identify unusual or irregular items, and finally
assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosures against relevant accounting standards,

Please see to the Statement of profit or loss & other Comprehensive Income note 2,06 & 22.00 to the Financial Statements.

Valuation of Inventory

As at 30 June 2024, the reported amount of inventory is
Tk. 1,210,580,495 held in plants warehouses.

On the reporting date, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. As such, the
companies apply judgment in determining the
appropriate values of inventory in accordance with
International Accounting Standards (TASs).

Considering the risk as stated above the valuation of
Inventory is a key audit matter to the Financial
Statements.

We  wverified the appropriatencss  of management's
assumptions applied in calculating the wvalue of the
inventory as per International Accounting Standards
(TASs) by:

= Evaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory controls operating across the factory,
warchouse.

Inventory counts and reconciling the results have been
done by the management.

We have collected inventory schedule and relevant
certification of inventories which indicates inventory
items were maintained in good condition but no aging
calculation performed.

Reviewing  the  historical  accuracy of  inventory
provisioning and the level of inventory write-offs
during the year.

Y

Please see note 01,07 & 06,00 fo the Financial Statemenis,

Valuation of Tangible Fixed Assets

The carrying value of the tangible fixed assets is Tk.
3.114,124,723 as at June 30, 2024, The valuation of
tangible fixed assets was identified as a key audit matter
due to significance of this balance to the Financial
Statements.

The expenditures are classified as an asset, if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

The useful lives of tangible fixed assets items are based
on management’s estimates regarding the period over
which an asset is expected to be available for use.

Our audit included the following procedures:

# We assessed whether the accounting policies in relation
to the capitalization of expenditures are in compliance
with IFRS and found them to be consistent.

We obtained a listing of capital expenditures incurred
during the year and, on a sample basis, checked whether
the items were procured during the year.,

We verified the invoices and L/C documents on sample
basis to segregate the capital and operating expenditure
and found that the transactions are appropriately
classified.

We evaluated whether the useful lives determined and
applied by the management were in line with the nature
of assets, the physical condition of the assets and its
UsLCs.

We checked the revaluation report as per BSEC
notification and found that the details of revaluation are
disclosed in the financial statements.

¥

Please see note no. 1.0 & 4.00 to the Financial Statements

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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Long Term Loan & Short-Term Loan

As at 30 June 2024, the reported amount of total
Long-Term Loan is Tk. 787,720,205 and Short-Term Loan
is Tk. 988,345,412 respectively. The company borrowed
fund from various Bank and The Directors & Sponsor
Shareholder for the purpose of acquisition of
non-current assets and working capital as well,

The company may face difficulties due to unfavorable
movement in interest rate & monetary policy that may
result in short-term and cash flow crisis,

=

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls focusing on the following:

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and operating effectiveness of controls designed
to ensure the proper use of loan.

We wverified sanction letter, loan schedule bank
statements to confirm the loan outstanding and found
that the balance had been reported in the Financial
Statements accurately.

We checked the financial expenses and classification of
loan and repayment schedule on a test basis as well but
during the period EPS is decrease to consider last year
due to increase of the financial expenses consider the
change in bank interest rate.

We checked the recording date of transactions and
found the recording date is in line with the loan
disbursement date.

Please see note no. 16.00 & I18.00 to the Financial Statemenis

Recoverability Assessment of Accounts Receivable

The total amount of debtors is Tk, 975,718,397 at 30
June, 2024. There is significant large number of
individual small customers. Customers in different
business segments and jurisdictions are subject to their
independent business risk.

The increasing challenges over the economy and
operating environment in the manufacturing industry
during the year have increased the risks of default on
receivables from the customers. In particular, in the
event of insolvency of customers, the company is
exposed to potential risk of financial loss when the
customers fail to meet their contractual obligations in
accordance with the requirements of the agreements.

Accordingly, we identified the recoverability of
Account Receivable as a key audit matters because of
the significance of receivable to Company's Financial
Position and because of the significant degree of
management judgment involved in evaluating the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts.

e

e

Y

":.l'

1‘:.I'

QOur audit procedures of assess the recoverability of trade
receivables including the following:

Tested the accuracy of aging of debtors at vear end on a
sample basis;

Evaluating the Company's policy for making allowance
for doubtful debts with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

Assessing the classification of Accounts receivables in
the receivable ageing report by comparison with sales
invoice and other underlying documentation on a taste
basis;

Assessed the recoverability of the debtors on a sample
basis through our evaluation of management's
assessment with reference to the credit profile of the
customers, historical payment pattern of customers but
aging report indicates that most of the party balance
are carry forwarded for long and we have sent balance
confirmation; and

Inspecting subsequent bank receipts from customers
and other relevant underlying documentation relating
to trade receivable balances at 30 June 2024,

Please see note no. 108 & 7.00 to the Financial Statements

{ Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. :}
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Related Party Transactions

The Company has related party transactions. We | Our audit procedures amongst others included the following:
focused on identification of related parties and | « Evaluated the design and tested the operating
disclosure of related party transactions in accordance effectiveness of controls over identification and
with relevant accounting standards. disclosure of related party transactions.

* [Evaluated the transactions among the related parties
and tested material accounts balances,

# Evaluated the disclosures in the financial statements in
compliance with LAS 24.

Please see note no, 2,10 & 33.00 to the Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters through our report is not qualified in those regard.

& As per BSEC Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCT2021-386/03 Dated; 14 January 2021 If any cash dividend remains unpaid or
unclaimed or unsettled need to maintain with separate bank account including interest (if any) thereon for a period of 3
(three) years from the date of declaration or approval or record date, as the case may be, shall be transferred by the issuer to
the Capital Market Stabilization Fund as directed or prescribed by the Commission but the company reported “Unclaimed
& Unpaid Dividend” under Note No.: 19.00 to the financial statements this amount are partially maintained in separate
bank account (Rupali Bank Ltd. No.#7582). Withheld dividend tax also outstanding with others balances includes in the
“Accounts Payable” are stated refer to Note No.: 20.00.

® The employee Welfare measures related to Labor Act 2006 need to comply as per said act in align with the fund recognition,

e As per the BSEC Notification SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/150/Admin Dated August 18, 2013 the valuation report has
presented as annexure- “B” to the financial statements and made related disclosure and adjustment to the Note No.: 1.06 &
14.00 in the financial statements.

® The EPS is decrease to consider last year due to increase of the financial expenses consider the change in bank interest rate.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the

Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. based on the work we have performed; we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

\ { Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. :} j
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Responsihbilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in accordance with IFRSs, The
Companies Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Companies Act, 1994 require the management to ensure effective internal
audit, internal control and risk management functions of the company.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemenis, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

\ { Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. :} j
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the company’s financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report the following:

a)  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b)  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from
our examination of those books;

¢)  The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income together with the
annexed notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d)  The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRC Registration No, CAF-001-116

i —

Mohammed Alamgir Kabir FCA
Place: Dhaka Partner

Dated: November 24, 2024 Enrolment No: 1483
DWV(C: 2411241483A5162957
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

Amount in Taka
PARTICULARS NOTES
30-Jun-24 1 30-Jun-23
ASSETS
Non-Current Asscts
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.00 3,114,124.723 2.740,027,087
Investment
Investment in BD Thai Food & Beverage Lid. 5.00 49,315,070 49.315,070
Current Assets 3,249,633,632 3,182,721,139
Inventories 6,00 1,210,580,495 1,129,327, 106
Accounts Receivable T.00 975,718,397 1,001, 477,276
Loans, Advances and Deposits 2.00 1,058,720,394 1,021,819,151
Investment in Shares of listed companics Q.00 1,217,932 1,552,714
Cash & Cash equivalenis 10,00 3396414 28,544 892
TOTAL ASSETS 6.413,073,425 5,972,063,296
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Sharcholder's Equity 3.904,371,577 3.556,921.365
Share Capital 11.02 1,277,752,500 1,277,752, 500
Share Premium 12.00 555,147,247 555,147,247
Revenue Reserve 13.00 19,578,459 19,578,459
Revaluation Surplus 14.00 1,701,130,546 1,257.681,223
Retained Earning 15.00 350,762,825 446,761,936
MNon-Current Liabilities 1,190,058,649 1,145,617,685
Long Term Loan (Secured) 600 THT. 720,205 709,904,543
Deferred Tax 17.00 402,338 444 435,712,842
Current Liabilities and Provisions 1,318.,643,199 1,269,524,246
Short Term Loans 18.00 088,345,412 942 802,957
Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividend 19.00 17,118,966 17.618,966
Accounts Payable 20,00 33,895,514 34,251,875
Accrued Expenses 21.00 279,283,307 274,850,448
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES | 6,413,073,425 || 5,972,063,296 |
Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share [ 30.56 || 27.84 |

The annexed notes from integral part of this financial statement

: . . S L-

m J‘I;:-q-(.( gi’t - F“,I_LIULM.. W -:J—-\VS_H-

Prof. Rubina Hamid Shabana Maleque Sk Jaidul Islam Ashim Kumar Barua
Chairperson Director MD & CEO (CC) CFO

Singed in terms of our annexed report of even date
Kari Fahir Khan & Co.

Chartered Acoountants

FRC Registration No, CAF-001-116

i
Mohammed Alamgir Kahir FCA
Partner
Enralment No; 1483 _/

Dated : November 24, 2024
Place : Dhaka, Bangladesh
\ DV # 2411241483A5162957
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BANGLADESH THAT ALUMINIUM LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JULY 2023 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS NOTES 0Jun24d | | 0Jun23
Tournover 22.00 602,823,822 034,801,145
Cost of Goods Sold 23.00 451,015,435 758,009,740
GROSS PROFIT 151,808,387 176,881,405
Administrative, Selling & Financial Expenses 256,649,647 236,414,611
Administrative Expenses 26.01 48,378,642 61,901,033
Selling & Distribution Expenses 26.02 41,089,296 51,744,960
Financial Expenses 26.03 167,181,709 122,768,618
OPERATING PROFIT (104,841,260) (59,533,206)
Other Income 27.00 1,645,283 1,220,515
Net Profit before Tax and WPP&EWF (103,195,977) (58,312,691)
Workers Profit Participation & WF
Net Profit before Tax (103,195,977) (58,312,691)
Current Tax 3,626,815 3,616,670
Deferred Tax 1,263,739 2,679,436
Tax Expenses 4,890,554 8,296,106
Net Profit after Tax (108,086,531) (66,608,797)
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation reserve of PPE during the yvear (net of tax) 346,808,276

Total comprehensive income

238,721,745

66,608.797
28.00 | (n.35}|| (0.52)

The annexed notes from integral part of this financial statement

EPS -Weighted Average Method

f«j‘-ﬁ-ﬂ- .41-,‘(3 g t{.ft fy grane I‘{A-qu— Wt%*v‘g
Prof. Rubina Hamid Shabana Maleque Sk Jaidul Islam Ashim Kumar Barua
Chairperson Director MD & CEO (CC) CFO

Singed in terms of our annexed report of even date  Kasi Zahir Khan & Co.

Chartered Acoountants
FRC Registration No, CAF-001-116

Dated : November 24, 2024
Place : Dhaka, Bangladesh
\ DVC # 2411241483A8162957

//,;,x’:_(_h_a.:"«{#'—

Mohammed Alamgir Kahir FCA
Partner
Enrolment Mo; 1483 _/
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JULY 2023 TO 30 JUNE 2024

Anmual Report 01.07.23 to 30.06,24 \

Particulars Share Capital | Share Premium | Revenue Reserve | Refained Earnings R&;-:Iua::n Total
AL (1 July 2023 12711525 555,141.247 1957843 446,761 936 LETARL2Y 3356921 %65
[Depecciation on Revaluation Surplus 1242202 (12422.02) -
Jrevaluation surphus during th year 213384 421,233,388
I[}pcning Deferred Tax on Revaluztion 356,285 20 336,285 0224
IEl-;h;ing Deferred Tax on Revaluation (2LOATARSN (321,647 485)
Net Profit for the Year (108,086,331 (108,086,330}
|Unrealized Loss on investment in Shares : - (334.782) : (314,782)
At 30 June 204 s s 19578459 380762808 LIOLIOSE 30 ILSTT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JULY 2022 TO 30 JUNE 2023

Particulars Share Capital | Share Premium | Revenue Reserve | Retained Earnings | Revaluation Surplus Total
At01 July 2022 s s 19578459 499,816,003 1,268,186,13%  3,620480,347
[Depeeciation on Revaluation Surplus : 13.554.730 (13.554,730) -
|Opening Defered Tax on Revaluation W 9354
IClming Defemred Tax on Revaluation . (356,285,6224  (356,285,622)
et Profit for the Year . 1 {66,608, 797 4 (66,608,797)
At 30 June 2023 LT IS05000  SSS14IMT) 19578459 446,761,936] 157,681,008 3,556,921,363
Bt foid Clbrtbabee TFNSY S W
Prof, Rubina Hamid Shabana Maleque Sk Jaidul Islam Ashim Kumar Barua
Chairperson Dircctor MD & CEO (CC) CFO

Dated : Movember 24, 2024
Place : Dhaka, Bangladesh
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JULY 2023 TO 30 JUNE 2024

PARTICULARS ﬁmmmlt Im Taka

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(122,052,410) 75,100,727

Collection from Turnover & Others 630,227,984 1,019,699,034
Payment for Costs & Expenses (564,174,887 (793,583,398)
Interest paid on Bank Loan (167.181,709) (122, 768.618)
Income Tax Paid & deducted at source (20.923.798) (28,246,291)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (25,953,885) (26,390,075)
Tangible Fixed Asset Acquired (25,953.885) (26,390,075)
Investment in Shares -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 122,857,817 (64,117,323)
Cash Credit & Other loan Paid 45,542 455 (75,659,254)
Long Term Loan 77,815,362 15,080,760
Dividend paid (500,000 (3,538,829)
Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (25,148,478) (15,41]5,1571]1
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Opening (28,544,892) (43,951,563)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Closing 3396414 28.544 892

| (25,148.478)| | (15,406.671)]
Net Operating Cash Flow (NOCF) Per Share (0.96) 0.59

P =¥ W

mu—&_ ,’4’-!-.—-{{ évf:-.,d:*'-lg it J—f,_f‘_,m__
Prof. Rubina Hamid Shabana Maleque Sk Jaidul Islam Ashim Kumar Barua
Chairperson Director MD & CEO (CC) CFO

[Dated : November 24, 2024
Place : Dhaka, Bangladesh
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024

L0 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF THE COMPANY-DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS “PRESENTATION
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"

Status

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium limited is a company incorporated in Bangladesh as a Public Company Limited
by Shares. The Company started commercial operation in its Unit No. 1 for fabrication of Aluminium doors,
windows etc. in 1981 and in its Unit No. 2 for manufacturing of extrusion and anodized and powder Casting
Aluminium profiles in 1990, The factory is located at Kaliakoir, Gazipur and the factory facilitics comprise of:

a) Fabrication of Aluminium door, windows etc.

b) Aluminium Billet casting

¢) Die Manufacturing

d) Extrusion of Aluminium Profiles

¢) Amortization of extruded Aluminium profiles

f) Powder coating of extruded Aluminium profiles.

Capacity
The Company has an aggregate capacity of 3,600 Metric Tons and Power supply and breakdown of our Diesel
Generator,

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

During the year, the Company was engaged in manufacturing and sale of anodized aluminium sections in its Unit
No. 2 and fabrication and sale of aluminium door/windows and hardware, glass false ceiling boards, aluminium
composite panels/sheets, accessories ete. in Unit No. 1.

List of shares
The shares of the company are listed with Dhaka and Chittagong Stock exchanges in Bangladesh.

Address of Registered Office Principal of Business
The principal place of business is the registered office at 29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani C/A Dhaka-1213.
Bangladesh and the factories are located at Chandra, Kaliakoir, Gazipur,

Number of Employees
On the payroll of the company, there were 70 officers, 51 staffs and 523 workers/technicians apart from many
casual/contract technicians/works drew yearly salary and allowances of Tk. 36,000 or more.

1.02  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS 1 “PRESENTATION OF
FINANCIAS STATEMENTS”

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting standards (IASs) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws and
regulations in the Country,

\ ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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Other Regulatory Compliances
The Company is also required to comply with the following major laws and Regulations in addition to the
Companies Act, 1994:

* The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;

* The Income Tax Act 2023;

* The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012;

* The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016;
* The Customs Act, 1969;

* Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 as amended in 2018;

* Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987;

* Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) Listing Regulations, 2015; and
* Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Listing Regulations, 2015,

Components of The Financial Statements
According to the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 adopted by FRC “Presentation of Financial
Statements”, the complete set of Financial Statements includes the following components.

i) Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024.

ii) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the period from 01 July 2023
to 30 June 2024,

iii) Statement of Changes in Equity for the period from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,

iv) Statement of Cash Flows for the period from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,

v) Notes to the Financial Statements.

Applicable Accounting Standards
The following LASs and IFRSs are applicable in preparing and reporting of the Financial Statements for the yvear
under review;

IAS - 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

IAS - 2 Inventories;

1IAS - 7 Statements of Cash Flows;

IAS - 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
IAS - 10 Events after the Reporting Period;

IAS - 12 Income Taxes:

IAS - 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;

IAS - 19 Employee Benefits;

[AS - 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates;

IAS - 23 Borrowing Costs;

IAS - 24 Related Party Disclosures;

IAS - 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation;

IAS — 33 Earnings per Share;

IAS - 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
IFRS - 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures;

IFRS - 9 Financial Instruments;

IFRES - 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with 1ASs and IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates, judgments and assumptions.

\ ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a going concern basis. Effects of revisions of estimates are
being recognized prospectively. These estimates are based on Management’s best knowledge of current events,
historical experiences, references and actions that are believed to the most likely and reasonable under the
circumstances.

Functional and presentation currency and level of precision

These Financial Statements are prepared and presented in Bangladeshi Taka Currency, which is the company’s
functional currency. Except indicated otherwise all financial information presented in Bangladeshi currency and
has been rounded off to the nearest integer.

Reporting Period
Financial Statements of the company cover the financial period from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024,

Going Concern

At each year end management of the Company makes assessment of going concern as required by LAS-1. The
company has adequate resources to continue its operation for the foresecable future and has wide coverage of its
liabilities. The Directors continue to adopt going concern assumption while preparing the financial statements.

Offsetting
In compliance to [AS-1 and 1AS-32, offsetting is done for a particular vendor or customer when the following
conditions are met:

*Each of the two parties owes the other determinable amounts;

*The entity has the right to set off against the amount owed by other party;

*The entity intends to offset;

*The right of setoff is legally enforceable

1.03 Measurement Bases used in preparing the financial Statements.
The elements of financial statements have been measured on “Historical Cost™ Basis, which is one of the
most commonly adopted bases a provided in “the frame work for the preparation and presentation of
financial statements” Issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (LASB) as adopted by The
Financial Reporting Council (FRC).

1.04  Specific accounting policies and applied for significant transactions and events. Recognition of Property,
Plant and Equipment and Depreciation.
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with
IAS 16 adopted by FRC “Property, Plant and Equipment”. Cost represents cost of acquisition or
construction and capitalization of pre-production expenditure including interest during construction
periods. No. depreciation is charged on land and land development. Depreciation has been charged on
addition of related assets from the date of available for use. “Depreciation on all other fixed assets is
computed using the diminishing balance method in amounts sufficient to write off depreciable assets over
the estimated wseful economic lives, Expenditure of maintenance and repairs are expensed, major
replacements, renewals and betterments are capitalized.

The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are
eliminated from the assets and accumulated depreciation, and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected
in operation for the year.

\ ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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.

The depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Plant and Machinery 10% 10%
Office Equipment 15%% 15%
Furniture and Fixture 10% 10%
Transport and Vehicles 209% 20%
Other Assets 3% - 20% 3% - 20%

1.05

L.06

L07

Of the whole amount of Depreciation charged for the year, 90% is allocated to cost of production and
balance 109 to Administrative and selling Expenses.

Impairment Test
As per IAS-36 we have conduced impairment test of PPE but we found no impair of PPE as on 30 June 2024.

Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment's

Financial statements of the Company have been prepared on historical cost basis. However, the values of
land have been increased substantially during the last few years due to high inflationary trend. In this
circumstance, management of Bangladesh Thai Aluminum Limited has been decided to determine fair
market value of the land through revaluation. The firm (Valuer) responsibility is to value the Property,
Plant and Equipment in accordance with International Valuation Standards (IVS) and condition and
guidelines for valuation of assets by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The
information of revaluation assets has been provided in the report as Annexure B:

Date of Revaluation: 30 June 2024;

Physical verification Date: 08 June 2024;

Name of Independent Valuer: Anil Salam Idris & Co., Chartered Accountants.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of raw materials, work in process, finished goods and stock of stores and spares. They
are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value on consistent basic in accordance with LAS 2 adopted
by FRC “Inventories.” Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs
expected to be incurred for completion and disposal.

*  Impairment of Inventories
Impairment of inventory is made as and when inventory became obsolete or unusable or for slow
maoving items for which the management of the company is giving decisions from time to time. Based on
sales cycle of slow-moving items, the sales prices of the products may decrease over time. The
management of the Company reviews the carrving amounts of its inventory (Balance Sheet date) to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment in accordance with [AS-2: ‘Inventories’.

(_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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When the sales price moves below the inventory cost prices, the loss on sales is recognized immediately
in the Financial Statements, However, there was no indication of impairment of inventory during the
year and as such, no adjustment was given in the Financial Statements for impairment.

LO8  Accounts Receivable
This is considered good and realizable, and therefore, no amount is required to be written off as bad debt
nor is there any debt which is considered doubtful of recovery.

1.09  Cash and Cash Equivalent
According to TAS 7 adopted by FRC “Statement of Cash Flows™ Cash comprises cash in hand and demand
deposit and, cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, IAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statemenis” also provides that cash and cash equivalents are those which has not restriction in
use considering the provision of IAS 7 and IAS 1 Cash in hand and bank balances have been considered as
cash and cash equivalents.

1.10  Accounis Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or
not billed by the supplier.

2.0 Employees Benefit Obligations
The Company operates a contributory provident fund for its permanent employees. Provident fund is
administrated by a Board of Trustees and is funded by contributions partly from the emplovees and partly
from the company at pre-determined rates,

2.01 Taxation
The Company made provision for income tax at @ 0.6 % on gross received as per Income Tax Act, 2023 for
the year end 30 June 2024

202 Tax holiday
Tax holiday period of “Unit No. 17 expired on 08-02-1990 while that of “Unit No. - 2" on 30-09-1997,

203  Income Tax (Current & Deferred tax)
Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and Deferred Tax. Income Tax is
recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity,
in which case it is recognized in equity.

2.04 Current Tax
Current lax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period/year and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years as per the provisions of income Tax Act, 2023 and duly amended by the
Finance Act from time to time. The Provision for Income Tax which was unsettled/unassessed from long
since.

205 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in accordance with the [AS-12: Income taxes the Balance Sheet method.
Deferred tax arises due to temporary difference deductible or taxable for the events or transaction is
recognized in the income statements. A temporary difference is the difference between the tax bases of an
asset or liability and it carrying amount/reported amount in the Statement of Financial Position. Deferred
tax assets or liability is the amount of income lax recoverable or payable in the future period(s) recognized
in the current period. The deferred tax liability/expenses do not create a legal liability/recoverability to and
from the income tax authority
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2.06 Revenue Recognition
The revenue during the year represents revenue arising from the sale of Aluminum sections and Aluminum
doors/windows and other Aluminum items which are recognized when deliveries are made against the sales
order received from the respective customer and after satisfying all the conditions for revenue recognition
as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue Recognition,”

207 Earnings per share
The Company calculates Earnings per Share (EFPS) in accordance with TAS 33 “Earnings per Share™ which
has been shown on the face of Profit or Loss Account and Other Comprehensive Income.,

2.08 Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ and
the cash flow from the operating activities have been presented under direct method as prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and considering the provisions of Paragraph 19 of IAS 7 which
provided that “enterprises are encouraged to report cash flow from operating activities using the direct
method”

209  Foreign current transaction
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Bangladesh Taka and recorded at rates
of exchange ruling on the date of transaction in accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Currency Rates™.

Compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS)
The financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of IAS as adopted by the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) applicable in Bangladesh.

2.10  Transactions with Related Parties
The Company carried a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and
on arm’s length basis. The nature of transaction and their total value has been disclosed in Note 5.00, 8.01,
18.00 & 26.01.

3.0  Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of

Financial statements

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the International Accounting Standards
requires Management to make estimates and assumption that affect the report, amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial Statement and
revenue and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates are use for accounting of certain terms such as long-term contracts, provision for doubtful
accounts, depreciation and amortization, employees benefit plans, taxes reserves and contingencies.

The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The Company's
activities are mainly exposed 10 the following internal, external, quantitative and gqualitative risks from its
use of financial instruments:

. Market Risk
*  Credit Risks
*  Liguidity Risk
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3.01

.02

3.03

3.4

3.05

3.06

3.07

arket Risk
Markel risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk that is “currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk”. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle its
financial and contractual obligations to the company as and when they fall due, Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. At the reporting date there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carryving amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position. However, due to a large number of parties comprising the
group’s customer base, Management does not anticipate material losses from its debt collection.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when become due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous year/period for all numerical information
in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for
understanding of the current period financial statements.

Turnover
Turnover comprises sales of the company excluding VAT,

Commission
Mo Commission was required to be paid to sales agents during the year under audit.

Brokerage or Discount
The Company did not pay any brokerage or discount other than the conventional trade discount against sales.

Responsibility for preparation and presentation financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements under
section 183 of the Companies Act, 1994 and as per the provision of the framework for the preparation and
presentation of financial statements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Due by the Directors
MNothing was due by Directors (including Managing Director), managers and other officers of the Company or
by associated undertakings and any of them severally or jointly with any other person.

Miscellaneous Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses do not include any item exceeding 1% of total revenue expenses.

Donations and Subscriptions
The amount of donations and subscription did not exceed Tk. 50,000 to any individual charities.
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3.09  Audit fee
As per decision taken in the 44th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th December 2023, the
auditor’s, remuneration of Tk. 220,000 has been provided for in the accounts which are the only sum to be paid
to auditors as remuneration.

310  Board Meeting and Members
There were 6 members in the Board of Directors of the Company and 4 Board Meetings were held in the yvear
under review,

311 Acknowledgement of Claims
There was no claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt as on 30 June 2024.

312 Credit facility not availed of
There were no general credit facilities other than those stated in “Note- 16.00 & 18.00" were available to the
Company under any contract to be availed of the Balance Sheet date.

3.13  Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividend
The Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividend amount are partially maintained in separate bank account. During the
year the company paid 500,000 taka against Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividend.

314 General

. Wherever considered necessary, previous year's figures have been rearranged for the purpose of
comparison.
. Figures appearing in these Financial Statements have been rounded off to the nearest integer.
. Bracket figures denote negative.
- (_Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

PARTICULARS

TAKA TAKA

4.00 Tangible Fixed Assets-Th. 311,4124,723
The break up of the above amount is as under ;

Written down value as on 30.006.2024 (Annexture-Al and AZ)
Revaluation Surplus as on 30006.2024 (Annexture-A3)

1.121,821,886 1.156,535,436
1,992,302,837 1.583.491,651

Tk. 3.114.124.723 2.740,027.087 I

Item-wise break-up of cost and valvation with accumulation depreciation of the fixed assets has been shown in the
Schedules marked “Schedule- A-1, A-2 & A-3" enclosed,
500 Investment in B} Thai Food & Beverage Litd.: Tk, 49,315,070

The break up of the above amount is as under 30-Jun-24 30=-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Share Capital 49,315,070 49,315,070
Tk. 49,315,070 | | 49,315,070
6,00 Inventories : Tk, 1,210,580,495
The break up of the above amount is as under ; J0-Jun-24 30=-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Stock of Finished Goods 289,938,209 287,923,691
Stock of Raw Materials 07,235,609 TO3,085,015
Steck of Work-in-Process 104,081,375 107,224 376
Stock of Spare Parts 4,089,219 4,266,210
Material in Transit 5,236,083 26,827,514
Tk | 1,210,580,495 | | 1,129,327,106 |
7.0 Accounts Receivable @ Tk, 975,718,397
The break up of the above amount is as under ; J0-Jun-24 30=-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Gross Deblors 075,718,397 1,001.477.276
Unsecured but considered good Tk | 975,718,397 | | 1.001,477.276
Aging :
Due below 3 Months 327,765,098 306,745,352
Due 3-6 Months 229 807,144 214,490,785
[Due 6-12 Months 226,250,509 251,290,372
Due above 12 Months 191,895,646 228,950,767
| 975,718,397 | | 1,001.477.276 |
B.O00 Loans, Advances and Deposits : Tk, 1,058,720,394
The break up of the above amount is as under 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Advances (Note-8.01) 1,050,280,362 1,0012,689,042
Deposit (Note-8.02) T974,756 7.974,756
VAT Current Account (Note-8.03) 465,276 1,155,353
Th | 1,058,720,394 | | 1.021.519,151 |
B.01 Advances : Tk. 1,050,280,362
The break up of the above amount is as under : 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Advance Against Purchases 674,108,227 657,562,310
Advance Against Expenses 1,787,023 1,555,231
Advance Against Income Tax 354,157,355 333,233,557
Advance Against Salary 1,099.675 1,206 862
Advance o BD Thai Food & Beverage Lid. 19,128,082 19,128,082
Tk | 1,050,280,362 | | 1.012,689,042 |
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Aging:

—

Due Below 3 Months 264,520 871 254 587 042
Due 3- 6 Months 29,786,519 202,576,165
Due 6 - 12 Months 164,167 558 149,806,452
Due above 12 Months 330,796,414 315,719,383
1050280362 ] | 1,012,689,042 |
Deposits : Tk. 7,974,756
The break up of the above amount is as under : 30-Jun-24 30-Tun-23
TAKA TAKA
Grameen Phone 7,289 7,289
Bank Guarantee Margin 2,425,510 2425510
Eamest Money and Security Deposit 180,250 180,250
Bangladesh Railway 2,685,615 2685615
Golden Oxygen Lid. for Gas 6,000 6, (N0
RERB Electric Connection 642 601 642 601
Titas Gas T & D.C, Lid. for Gas 2,027,491 2,027,491
Tk. 7,974,756 | | 7,974,756
Advances are Unsecured, but Considered good.
VAT Current Account : Tk, 465,276
The break up of the above amount is as under J0-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
VAT Current Account 465,276 1,155,353
Tk | 465.276 | | 1,155,353
Investment in Shares of listed companies: Tk.1,217,932
51 No. Name of Company Cost Price Market Value
1 AAMRATECH 417,578 373,368
2 EHL 127,770 255,719
3 MHSML S, 0549 554,096
4 RSEM Steel 100,307 314,749
Total 1,552,714 1,217,932
Cash & Cash equivalents : Tk, 3,396,414
The break up of the above amount 15 as under ; 30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Cash in Hand - -
Cash at Banks :
Mercantile Bank Ltd., Banani Br., Ac# 010611 100004615 19,144 2,168,604
Mercantile Bank Lid., Banani Br. Ac# 01061 1 100012530(PFS) 250,878 232 932
Exim Bank Lid., Gulshan Br, Ac# 007111001 56068 4,964 147,729
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd., Shafipur Br. Ac# 18211099493 #55,230 2,439,390
Shaha Jalal Islami Bank Ltd., Banani Br. Ac# 101311 15496 243077 6,587,518
Rupali Bank Lid., Local Office Br, Ac# 200085688 57,290 1,758,661
Rupali Bank Ltd., Local Office Br. F.C. Ac# RQ03 438,684 382,532
Dividend Account with Rupali Bank Lid. Ac#f T582 115,941 619,648
Shaha Jalal Tslami Bank Lid., (R/S) ACH# 0923 1053418 1,043,282
Pubali Bank Ltd., Ac # 1034 344,284 5,322,051
BRAC Bank Lid., Ac # 2001 13,454 1.842 455

Tk. I 3,396,414 I I 28,544,892

Without the above-mentioned bank accounts, we do not have any other bank accounts.
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1100 Sharcholder's Equity: Tk. 3,904,371,577

30-Jun-24 30=Jun-23
TARA TAKA
Share Capital (Mote: 11.02) 1,277.752,500 1,277.752,500
Share Premium (Maote: 12,000 555,147,247 555,147,247
Revenue Reserve  (Mote: 13.00) 19,574,459 19,578,459
Revaluation Surplus  (Note: 14.00) 1.701,130,546 1,257.681,223
Retained Earning  (Note: 15.00) 350,762,825 446,761,936
Tk. 3.904.371.577 3.556,921.365

11.01 Awthorized Capital - Tk. 2,000,000,000
The Company has an authorized capital of Tk. 2,000,000,000 divided into
200,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 10V- each.

1102 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: Tk, 1,277,752,500
Tt represents the paid-up capital of the Company consisting of :

No. of . Ji-Jun-24 J-Jun-23

Shares Particulars TAKA TAKA
5081000 Issued as Ordinary Shares of TK. 10 each fully paid up 50,810,000 50,810,000
508,100 Issued as Bonus Shares of Tk, 1(¢= each 5,081,000 5,081,000
2,781,640 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk, 1¥= each 27,816,400 27,816,400
5589, 100 lssued as Right Shares of Tk. 1(¥= each 35,891,000 35,891,000
3079660 lssucd as Further Shares of Tk, 1(/= each S0, 796,600 300,796, G0
3407900 1ssued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk, 1(d= cach 34,079,000 34,079,000
12,431 850 Issued as Further Shares of Tk. 10¢= cach 124 318,500 124 318,500
3219810 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk, 1(¢= each B2, 198,100 2,198,100
2054953 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk, 1(¢= each 20,549,530 20,549,530
2157700 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Th. 10¢= each 21,577,000 21,577,000
2,205,586 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk. 1¢= ¢ach 22,655,860 22,655,860
4,757,729 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk. 1= each 47,577,290 47,577,290
5,233,502 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk, 1= each 52,335,020 52,335,020
52,335,028 lssued as Right Shares of Th. 1(¢= cach 523,350,280 523,350,280
5,495,178 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk. 1(¥= cach 54,951,780 54,951,780
8,654,905 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk. (W= each 86,549,050 86,549,050
3,721,609 Issued as Further Bonus Shares of Tk. 1= each 37,216,000 37,216,000
127,775,250 Tk. 1,277,752,500 1,277,752,500

a) Compaosition of shareholders:

51 No. Particulars Mumbers of shares Value
0. Directors & Sponsors 37,281,407 372,814,070
02, GEM Global Yield Fund Limited 806,968 8,008,680
(13, Gieneral Sharcholders 89,686,875 B96,868,750
Total Tk. 127,775,250 1,277,752,500

b} The pereentage of sharcholding by different categories of sharcholders are as follows:

Mo, of Holders Haoldings Total Holding %
7.781 Less than - 5000 Shares 0.84%
8,330 SO0-5000 9. T0%
1,425 SO0 - 10000 7.55%

BHS 1O - 20000 8.85%
331 200601 - 30000 " 6.13%
135 JO00 ] -H0000 " 4.54%
26 4000 1 - 50000 " 3.70%
135 S0001 - 100000 " 9.509%
22 TEEHI - 1000000 " 16.59%
7 Orver= 1000000 32.51%
19,197 VIR
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12.00

13.00

14.00

15.00

16.00

17.00

18.00

Share Premium: Tk, 555,147,247
The break up of the above amount is as under :

Balance as per last Adc
Adjustment during the year

Revenue Reserve: Tk, 19,578,459
The break up of the above amount is as under ;

Balance as per last Afc

HRevaluation Surplus: Tk, 1,701,130,546
The break up of the above amount is as under :

Balance as per last account

Addition during the vear

Depreciation charged on revaluation amount
Opening Deferred Tax

Closing Deferred Tax

Retained Earnings: Tk. 350,762,825

The break-up of the above amount is as follows:

Opening Balance

Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus

Add: Net Profit after Tax during the period

Unrealized Loss on investment in Shares

Closing Balance TK.

Long Term Loan: Tk, 787,720,205
The break up of the above amount is as under :

Rupali Bank Ltd. (Block Loan 1, 2 & 3)
Less; Installment to be paid within 12 month
TDCP Loan

Project Loan Rupali Bank Lad.

Deferred Tax: Tk, 402,338,444
The break up of the above amount is as under :

On Revaluation of Fixed Assets
On Other Temporary Difference

Short Term Loans: Tk, 988,345412
The break up of the above amount is as under ;

Short Term Bank Loans(Secure) (Note: 15.01)
Loan From Prstine Builders & Traders

Loan From Mr Zahid Malegue .

Loan from Rahat Real State & Construction Lid.

&—,

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
555,147,247 555,147,247
Th | 555,147,247 | | 555,147,247 |
J0-Jun-24 J0-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
19,578 459 19,578,459
Tk. | 19.578.459 | | 19,575,459 |
30-Jun-24 a0-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
1.257.681,223 1,268, 186,139
421,233,388 -
(12,422,202) (13,554,730
156,285,622 359,335,436
(321,647,485) (356,285,622)
Tk. | 1.701.130.546 | | 1.257.681,223 |
D1-Jul-2023 O1-Jul-2022
to to
J0-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
446,761,936 499,816,003
12,422,202 13,554,730
(108,086,531) (66608, 797)
(334,782) -
| 350,762,825 | | 446,761,936
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
670,193,180 617,681,035
(112,400,000 (112,400,000)
1,334,890 1,331,890
228,592,135 203,201,918
Th | 787,720,205 | | 709,904,843 |
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
321 647 485 356,285,622
&0,600,958 79,427,220

Tk. 402,338,444 435,712,842

Tk.

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
053,638,772 920,157,397
1,450,000 2. 750,000
5,756,640 13,895,560
27,500,000 -
988345412 042,802,957
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18.01 Short Term Bank Loans{Secure): Tk, 953,638,772

19.00

20,00

20.01

21.00

21.01

The break up of the above amount is as under :

a) Cash Credit (Hypothecation)

from Rupali Bank Ltd., Local Office, Dhaka.
by Installment of Long Term Loan
¢} UPAS Loan, Rupali Bank Lad., Local Office

¢) COVID-19 Revolbing refinance Scheme, Rupali Bank lhd. L/O

Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividend TK. 17,118,966

The break up of the above amount is as under :

Balance at 1 July 2023
Paid during the year
Balance at 30 June 2024

Accounts Payable: Tk. 33,895,514
The break up of the above amount is as under ;

K. Far East Trading Co. Ltd., Bangkok

Income Tax withheld/deducted

Workers Profit Participation & Welfare Fund (Note-20.01})

Employes Provident Fund
Dividend Distribution Tax

Other Creditors

Workers Profit Participation & Welfare Fund: Tk. 16,199,353

The break up of the above amount is as under :

Balance as per last account
Add: During the period

Less: Payment During the period

Accrued Expenses : Tk, 279,283,307
The break up of the above amount is as under :

Remuneration, Salary & Wages

Audit Fee

Preference Dividend Payable
Provision for Income Tax

Other Expenses

(Note: 21.01)

Provision for Income Tax: Tk. 268,181,059
The break up of the above amount is as under :

Balance as per last Afc
Current Tax (Note: 21.01.1)

Annual Report 01.07.23 10 30.06,24 \

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
497047370 460,666,483
112,400,000 112,400,000
200,111,062 208,805,788
144,080,340 138,195,126
Tk, 953,638,772 920,157,397
01-Jul-2023 T-Jul-2022
to to
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
17,618,966 21,157,795
500,000 3,538,820
17,118,966 | | 17,618,966 |
J0-Jun-24 J0-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
533,139 553,139
11,867,302 11,956,428
16,199,353 16,476,803
3,687,903 3,876,351
300,511 300,511
1,287,306 1,088,643
Tk | 33,895,514 | | 34,251,875 |
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
16,476,803 16,602,303
16,476,803 16,602,303
277450 125,500
Tk | 16,199,353 | | 16,476,803 |
J0-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
6,564,290 6,630,740
220,000 220,000
19,357 19,357
268,181,059 264,554,244
4,298,601 3,426,107
Tk. | 279,283,307 | | 274,850,448 |
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
264,554,244 258,937,574
3.626.815 5,616,670
Tk. 268,181,059 264,554,244
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21.01.1 Current Tax Tk. 3626815

—,

The break up of the above amount is as under ; J0-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
TAKA TAKA
Profit as per Income Statement (103,195.977) (58,312,691)
Accounting Depreciation (only on cost) 6667 433 64,455,733
Tax Base Depreciation (66,284,051) (Th,364,338)
Adjusted Profit | (108,812,595)| | (70,221,296)|
Current Tax @ 22.50% of adjusted profit Tk. - -
Or 0.6% OF gross received whichever is higher 3,626,815 5,616,670
Turnover : TK. 602,823,822 i.ll-.lutl;lﬂ'ﬂ- lI]-Ju:;lllZZ
The break up of the above amount is as under : 3-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Aluminium Profile 693,247 395 Q34 891,145
90,423,573 121,942.323
TK. [ 602,823,822 | | 812,948,822 |
Cost of Goods Sold: Tk, 451,015,435
The break up of the above amount is as under ;
01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Lo o
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Materials Consumed {Note-24) 268,729,787 339,590,844
23,735,109 33,422,890
Manufacturing Overheads (Note-25) 157,422,056 187,797,297
449,486,952 761,111,031
Work in Process Adjustment 3,143,001 12,543,880
Cost of Production 453,029,953 773,654,911
Finished Goods Stock Adjustment (2,014,518) (15,645,171)
Cost of goods sold Tk | 451,015,435 || 758,009,740 |
Materials Consumed : Th. 268,729,787
The break up of the above amount is as under :
01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Lo o
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Opening Stock TO3,085,015 629,021,391
Add: Purchases During the year 372,880,381 613,954 468
1,075,965,396 1,242.975,859
Less: Closing Stock BOT,235, 600 103,085,015
Tk. 268,729,787 539,890,844
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25.00 Manufacturing Overheads : Tk, 157,422,056

26.00

26.01

The break up of the above amount is as under :

01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Particulars to to
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Salary and Wages including Provident Fund Contribution 22,639,128 30,278,153
Fuel, Power & Gas 62.418.5876 735,845,231
Repairs & Maintenance (Machinery) 2,572,901 5,534,130
Vehicles Expenses 1,720,916 2,676,196
Carrying Charges 2,289 562 3,254, 1649
Depreciation 63,780,673 70201418
Tk. 157,422,056 187,797,297
Administrative, Selling & Financial Expenses : Tk. 256,649,647
The break up of the above amount is as under ;
01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Particulars to to
3-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Administrative Expenses (Note-26.01) 48,378,642 61,901,033
Selling & Distribution Expenses (Note-26.02) 41,089,296 51,744,960
Financial Expenses (Note-26.03) 167,181,709 122,768,618
Tk. 256,649,647 | | 236,414,611
Administrative Expenses : Tk, 48,378,642
The break up of the above amount is as under :
01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Particulars to to
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Directors” Remuneration & Allowances 3,120,000 4,080,000
Salary & Allowances including Provident Fund Contribution 20,905,810 40,428,571
Printing & Stationary 331,863 534,289
Legal & Professional Charges 522 890 815,760
Rent, Rates & Taxes 735,920 Q87.193
Water & Sewerage 15,325 12,540
Postage & Stamp 60,780 72415
Telephone, Telex & Mobile 710,267 1.023,172
Entertainment & AGM Expenses 487,200 687297
Medical & Wellare 55,287 75,286
Local Conveyance 872,008 1,009,182
Depreciation 7,308,964 T.R00,047
Audit Fee 220,000 220,000
Miscellancous Expenses 330,675 452,718
Insurance Premium 3,701,563 3,701,563
Tk. | 48,378,642 | | 61,901,033 |
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Selling & Distribution Expenses : Th. 41,089,296
The break up of the above amount is as under ;

—,

01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Particulars to to
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Salary & Allowances 37,161,135 46407419
Business Promotion Expenses 756,212 966,527
Telephone & Mobile 599,820 856,215
Conveyance 205,209 299716
Advertisement & Publicity 2,190,624 2,989,216
Miscellaneous Expenses 176,296 225,867
Tk. 41,089,296 | | 51,744,960
Financial Expenses : Tk, 167,181,709
The break up of the above amount is as under :
01-Jul-2023 01-Jul-2022
Particulars to to
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Bank Intercst & Bank Charges 167,181,709 122,768,618
Tk 167,181,709 | | 122,768,618
Other Income: Tk. 1,645,283
The break up of the above amount is as under ﬂl-.lutl;lllﬂ o1 -,lulll‘;ll}n
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
Wastage Sale and others 1,645,283 1,220,515
Tk. 1,645,283 | | 1,220,515
Basic Earning Per Share -EPS (Adjusted)
The computation of EPS is given below: ﬂl-;lutl;lllﬂ- o1 -'I“:';mn
30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23
a)  Eamings/attributable to the Ordinary Sharcholder's (108,086,531) (66,608,797)
by Weighted Average number of the Ordinary
Shares Outstanding during the year 127,775,250 127,775,250
¢) Basic EPS [ (0.85)] | (0.52)}

Because of increasing the value of raw materials and other direct expenses, EPS decrease compare to last year.

Reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activities
Net profit after tax

Depreciation

(Increase)Decrease in Inventonies

(IncreasedDecrease in Accounts Receivable

(Increase)dDecrease in Loans, Advances and Deposils

Increased{ Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Increased{ Decrease) in Accrued Expenses

Increasef{ Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liahilities

(108,086,531) (66,608,797)
73,089,637 78,010,466

(81,253,389) (64,895,554)
25,758,879 43,587,374
(36,901,243) 37,995,944
(356,361) 200,572
4,432,859 4,131,287
1,263,739 2,679,436
(122,052,410) 75,100,728

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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30.00  Net Operating Cash Flow Per Shares

Net cash Now [rom operating activities (122,052.410) 75,100,728
Number of Shares Outstanding during the vear 127,775,250 127,775,250
(0.96) 0.59

3100 Contingent Liability

The Company has the following Liabilities which are contingent upon the decision/disposal of write/appeals by the appropriate

authority/court.
Sl . Nature of Amount of Demand Period of “I,n,“
. Demanding authority demand/ demand/ petition
No. P P stayed by stay
liability liahility - - reference
High Court
Y ivisi

2) The Commissioner of Customs, Su iTmi:fanr 27 022,681 DIV:;T:?hTiihc Till disposal | 5047 of

Excise & VAT, Dhaka. SUPP S B of the Rule | 2003

Duty(5.12.) Supreme
Court
The Commissioner of Customs,| VAT as Nirman , . 5265 of
JN8,07 I I
®) | Excise & VAT, Dhaka(North) | Sangstha 6,018,078 e o 2003
. VAT on recycling
The Deputy Commissioner of . , . 4389 of
. f Company's ow 3,045,003 Ditt Ditt
©) Customs, Excise & Vat Gazipur of Company's own 045,00 e e 2003
process wastage
Supplementary
The Suptd. Customs, Excise & Duty of : . 3518 of
LD, 3
9 VAT Gazipur Circle. manufactured 36,538,186 Pitto bitto 2003
aluminivm profile

The Deputy Commissioner of | VAT & SD on 3381 of

e) Customs, Excise & VAT railway Cach 3,412,397 Ditto Diuo ’ im%

Gazipur Division windows )

Total 76,056,345

3200 Subsequent events :

a) There is no significant event that has occurred between the Balance Sheet date and the date when the Financial Statements were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors,

b) The Board of Directors in its board meeting held on November 24, 2024 has recommended 0.25% dividend to the general

sharcholders excluding sponsors & promoter sharcholders for the vear ended June 30, 2024 subject to approval of the sharcholders at
the ensuring Annual General Meeting (AGM).

- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J/
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33,00 Helated Party Transactions

The company has related party transactions as per IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosers™

—,

S Opeaing Addition | Adjustment Closing
[s aw L\ .\. I X ] ] - -
No. ame of the party Related Note No. Purpose Balance during the | during the Balance
year year
| |BD Thai Food & Beverage Lud 500 1 Investment | 49,315,070 - - 49,315,070
2 |BD Thai Food & Beverage Ltd 801 |  Advances 19,128,082 - - 19,128,082
3 |Mr, Zahid Maleque 15,00 Loan 13,593,560 - 8,138,920 5,756,640
4 |Rahat Real State & 1800 |  Loan - | 27,500,000 | 27500000
Construction Lid.
5 |Pristing Builders & Traders 15,00 Loan 8,750,000 - 7,300,000 1,450,000
g |irectors” Remuneration & 26.01 | Remuneration 3120000 | 2,860,000 260,000
Allowances
Total 91,088,712 | 30,620,000 | 18,298,920 103,409,792

Bbiwo boid Gl tlaboae  TANISUg o

Prof. Rubina Hamid Shabana Maleque Sk Jaidul Islam
Director MD & CEO(CC)

Date : November 24, 2024
Place : Dhaka, Bangladesh

(b

Ashim Kumar Barua

CFO

o ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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Dated: 03 November 2024 Annexure-B

The Board of Directors

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.

29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue,

Banani C/A, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh

Fairness opinion by the valuer of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.

We have valued the Property, Plant and Equipment of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. as on 30 June
2024. We have assessed the valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment at current market price, after
giving due consideration to its present condition. The main objective of this assignment is valuation
of Property, Plant and Equipment of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. at fair market price to
incorporate it in the Statement of Financial Position.

The responsibility of the management of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. is to provide all required
information in respect of Land, Building & Investment Property. Our responsibility is to value the
Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with International Valuation Standards (IVSS) and
condition and guidelines for valuation of assets by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSECQ).

The valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment has been conducted in accordance with International
Valuation Standards (IVSS) and condition and guidelines for valuation of assets by BSEC based on
present location, condition, documents, and papers related to the acquisition of PPE. The value has
been ascertained based on current market rate of the land which can be considered as arm's length
transaction.

The Fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment stands at Tk. 3,114,124,723.

The value of the Property, Plant and Equipment of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. has been
ascertained with fundamental principles of ethical conduct, integrity, objectivity, competence,
confidentiality, and professional behavior as on 30 June 2024. We certify that, the value derived
during the valuation process is fair, accurate and reflects current market value of Property, Plant and
Equipment of the company.

Yours sincerely

~ ~ A
Md. Andr I Hossain, FCA
Managing Partner
Anil Salam Idris & Co.
Chartered Accountants

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) )
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LTD.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Itd. is a company incorporated in Bangladesh as a Public Company
Limited by Shares. The Company started commercial operation in its Unit No. 1 for fabrication of
Aluminium doors, windows etc. in 1981 and in its Unit No. 2 for manufacturing of extrusion and
anodized and powder Casting Aluminium profiles in 1990. The principal place of business is the
registered office at 29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani C/A Dhaka-1213. Bangladesh and the factories
are lacated at Chandra, Kaliakoir, Gazipur.

The purpose of valuation is to arrive at a fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment to follow
Revaluation Model and Fair Value Model in compliance IAS 16.

The concept of "Fair Value" has been kept in mind in placing a value on the assets and liabilities and
ultimately arriving at a fair value of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company as under:

The Fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment stands at Tk. 3,114,124,723. Details of revaluation of
Property, Plant and Equipment are presented in summary result of revaluation head.

It is important to note that the following limitations or uncertainties associated with the valuation:

a. Market volatility: The value of an asset may be affected by market volatility, which can lead to
significant fluctuations in asset values over time.

b. Valuation approach: This valuation was conducted following Market Approach and Cost approach;
we did not consider Income Approach.

c. Changes in economic conditions: Changes in economic conditions, such as changes in interest
rates, inflation, and unemployment rates, can affect the value of assets.

d. Changes in regulations: Changes in regulations, such as tax laws or environmental regulations, can
also impact the value of assets.

e. Assumptions and estimates: Valuation models often require various assumptions and estimates,
which can impact the accuracy of the valuation results. Notable that there might have following
other adjustments which have not been considered in valuation. The facts, figures and information
which have not been communicated with us or what we are not aware of.

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.
As on 30 June 2024

1. Introduction

During a meeting held on 19 May 2024, the Board of Directors of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.
resolved to conduct a valuation of the Property, Plant and Equipment of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium
Ltd.

In line with this, Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. invited offer letters from various firms and
ultimately engaged the services of Anil Salam Idris & Co, Chartered Accountants, a reputed firm, to
conduct the valuation. Anil Salam Idris & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed for the valuation
process, manage and supervise the overall assignment of the valuation, and engage the necessary
resources. Anil Salam Idris & Co, Chartered Accountants submitted a proposal on 23 May 2024, which
was subsequently accepted by Directors of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd., Anil Salam Idris & Co,
Chartered Accountants were appointed to conduct the valuation of the Property, Plant and Equipment
of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. as of 30 June 2024, using a market and cost approach to determine
fair value.

2. Background of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. (BTA)

Bangladesh Thai Aluminium limited is a company incorporated in Bangladesh as a Public Company
Limited by Shares. The Company started commercial operation in its Unit No. 1 for fabrication of
Aluminium doors, windows etc. in 1981 and in its Unit No. 2 for manufacturing of extrusion and
anodized and powder Casting Aluminium profiles in 1990. The principal place of business is the
registered office at 29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani C/A Dhaka-1213. Bangladesh and the factories
are located at Chandra, Kaliakoir, Gazipur.

During the year, the Company was engaged in manufacturing and sale of anodized aluminium sections
inits Unit No. 2 and fabrication and sale of aluminium door/windows and hardware, glass false ceiling
boards, aluminium composite panels/sheets, accessories etc. in Unit No. 1

The Company has an aggregate capacity of 3,600 Metric Tons and Power supply and breakdown of
our Diesel Generator.

On the payroll of the company, there were 70 officers 51 staffs and 523 workers/technicians apart
from many casual/contract technicians/works drew yearly salary and allowances of Tk. 36,000 or
more

3. Management's Responsibilities
The management has committed to providing us with all necessary information, data and documents
in the format or media requested to enable us to perform the services properly. Additionally, they will
ensure that officers are available to respond to any inquiries related to the service.

4. Scope of Work

The objective of this assignment was to evaluate the fair value of the Property, Plant and Equipment
owned by Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. We conducted the following procedures and presented a
comprehensive valuation report:

a. We assembled a multi-disciplinary team comprising of experts from various fields such as Civil
Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Electrical Engineering, Valuation and Accounting as
described in the report.

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) )

71



/_ ﬁm Annual Report 01.07.23 to 30.06.24 \

b. We engaged the services of a reputable Valuer Firm, Mridha & Associates Ltd., to carry out the
valuation.

c. In addition to the Valuer, we also appointed a Civil Engineer to provide technical support
throughout the process.

d. We physically verified and evaluated the quality of assets to determine their fair value.

e. We also reviewed the classification of all fixed assets, ensuring they were accurately recorded
according to standard practices.

f. We selected appropriate valuation methodologies, including historical cost, replacement cost,
and market value and worked as a team to achieve the desired outcome.

g. The final report was prepared based on the results of the ground valuation work and is intended
to be presented to the Board with reasonable detail.

Overall, our goal was to provide the management of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. with an accurate
and reliable valuation of their assets and we believe that our team's expertise and thorough approach
have achieved this objective.

5. Statement of Assumptions and Limiting Conditions
This valuation is subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions:

a. The Company and its representatives have presented to us that the information they provided
regarding the "Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. " owned by them was complete and accurate to
the best of their knowledge. We have accepted this information as correct without further
verification and express no opinion on it. The information presented in the financial statements
reflects the Company's results of operations and financial position.

b. We are not obliged to provide testimony in court or attend hearings or depositions related to the
valuation of the company, unless prior arrangements have been made.

c. The estimates of value presented in this report apply only to this valuation and cannot be used
outside the context presented herein. This valuation is valid only for the purpose or purposes
specified in this report.

d. This valuation is based on the assumption that the Company will continue to operate as a going
concern and that the character of the present business of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. will
remain unchanged.

e. This valuation is based on the facts and conditions that existed on the valuation date. We have not
considered events or conditions occurring after that date and we have no obligation to update our
report for such events and conditions.

f. The management provided us with the Audited financial statements as on 30 June 2023 and 31
March 2024 which include the asset portion of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. for the purpose
of this valuation.

g. The information, estimates, and opinions contained in this report are obtained from sources
considered reliable. However, we assume no liability for such sources.
h. Depreciation calculated based on the guideline of International Valuation Standard (IVS).

i. We do not assume any responsibility for legal matters, including but not limited to legal or title
concerns. We assume that title to all subject business assets is good and marketable.

j. Unless stated otherwise in this report, we assume that the company is compliant with applicable
laws and regulations.

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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k. We have assumed that Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. under this valuation process has state-of-
the-artsafety and security measures to handle any type of unprecedented situations or events such
as fire. However, we are not qualified to establish the absence of such conditions or materials, nor
do we assume responsibility for discovering them.

1. The valuation analysis and conclusion of value presented in this report are for the purpose of this
engagement only.

m. This report is valid only for the specified date.

6. The valuation Team

A team of professionals with diverse expertise was assembled to conduct a physical verification,
evaluate the quality of assets and assess the fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment. The team
was carefully composed to ensure an optimal blend of skills and knowledge. The following team was
composed with the following professionals:

— ~ —
| SL. Name of Professionals Qualifications Experiences
. 1. | Md. Anwar Hossain, FCA M. Com, FCA 22 years
2. | Md. Abdullah Al Masud, FCA M. Com, FCA | 15 years
3. | Ashanul Karim Chowdhury | CA (Professional Level) 8 years
L - 'f)'ifn—_IIﬁ—Arch. (Architect,
- 4 Md. Ayub Ah I\/Frid"ha S Chief Surveyor) 45 years
5 Engr. Mohammed Ashraful Islam B.Sc. Engg. (Civil) 11 years
i Dip-in-Engineering
6. | Engr. Md. Rafiqul Islam (Electrical) . 25 years '
L . E— B.Sc.Engg. (EEE) | ]
7. | Md. Hasanuzzaman CA (Professional Level) 3 years

Introduction of the Professional Valuer:

MRIDHA & ASSOCIATES LTD. is a reputed valuer firm (Land, Building, Machineries, Stock & Inventory,
Quantity Surveyor) since in the year 1990 and Member of Bangladesh Survey & Valuation Companies
Farms and Individual Concern Association (BSVCFICA) & International Valuation Standard (IVSC).
They are enlisted with many financial institutes, Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd., Shahjalal Islami Bank
Ltd., The City Bank Ltd., Exim Bank Ltd., Al Arafa Islami Bank Ltd., Union Bank Ltd. NRBC Bank, Prime
Bank Ltd., National Bank Ltd., Mercantile Bank Ltd. Janata Bank Ltd. United Leasing Company, FAS
Finance & Investment Ltd. & Associates with ACNABIN, KHAN AYUB, Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co, AZIZ
HALIM KHAIR CHOUDHURY, Ahmed Khan & Co., Rahman Mostofa Alam & Co., M M Rahman & Co., S.F
Ahmed & Co., Marhk & Co., Mollah Quadair Yusuf & Co., A. Wahab & Co., Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman
& Co, Syful Shamsul Alam & Co., S.R Islam & Co Anil Salam Idris & Co. Artisan (Chartered Accountant
firm) & International Asset Evaluator Division HK / Bangladesh, Unity Members Foundation (Hk) Ltd.

7. Identification of the client and any other intended users
The purpose of this valuation is to determine the fair market value of the Property, Plant and
Equipment owned by Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. which will be presented in the financial
statements. Therefore, the users of this report will be the same as the users of the financial statements.
8. Nature of Instruction and the Purpose of the valuation
The purpose of valuation is to assess the estimated fair market value of Property, Plant and Equipment
of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. as on 30 June 2024 with the aim to recognize and present in its
financial statements at a fair market value.

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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a. The objective of this valuation is to determine the fair market value of the Property, Plant and
Equipment of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. as of 30 June 2024. The purpose is to accurately
recognize and present these assets at their fair market value in the company's financial
statements.

b. To ensure compliance with the regulatory framework, the valuation must adhere to the
requirements set forth by follow the International Valuation Standards (1VS).

c. The valuation must accurately reflect the fair value of the Property, Plant and Equipment of the
company and provide an accurate representation of their fair value to potential investors. This
will ensure that potential investors have a clear and truthful understanding of their investment
prospects.

Finally, the revalued amounts of Property, Plant and Equipment must be included in the financial
statements in compliance with the applicable provisions of International Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

9. ldentification of the asset to be revalued
Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. has appointed Anil Salam Idris & Co. Chartered Accountants to
assess the valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

10. Basis of valuation

Valuation of the subject Property, Plant and Equipment was carried out on the basis of following
standards and guidelines:

a. The application of the standard for revaluation of assets has been in accordance with
International Accounting Standards (1AS-16).

b. The Land, Machineries have been revalued at fair value using a market and cost approach as per
the standard for revaluation of such assets. This was done after providing necessary allowances
for depreciation to arrive at the carrying value of revalued assets.

c. The valuation has been carried out in accordance with the International Valuation Standards:
(IVS)-101, 102, 103, 300 and 400. The Fundamental Principles of Ethical Conduct, namely
Integrity, Objectivity, Competence, Confidentiality, and Professional Behavior, have been
maintained during the valuation process.

11. Valuation Date

| Name of Fixed Assets Cut-off d.afé Physical Verification Dai;:—'

.

L Property, Plant and | 30 June 2024 08 June 2024
Equipment

12, Nature and Source of the Information Relied Upon
To arrive at the conclusion of the valuation for the land, we utilized a variety of information sources.
Specifically, we relied on the following key documents:

Title/Purchase Deed for the land

R.S. Mutation Parcha

B.S. Jarip Parcha

B.S. Mutation Parcha

Development Control Regulations (DCR)

Up-to-date rent receipts

mo o0 oW
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Our experts conducted an on-site visit to observe the land's position and location, as well as its
commercial importance, communication access, and other infrastructural facilities associated with
the property.

Additionally, we consulted various sources to assess the current market value of the land, including:
e Online property sale platforms

* Local land brokers

* Deed writers involved in drafting sale deeds for similar properties

* Knowledgeable local individuals

This comprehensive approach ensured a well-informed valuation based on reliable and diverse
sources of information.

13. Valuation approach and Methodology
13.1 Approaches

a. Market Approach
The value of an asset is determined at which an asset could be sold in its specified form and at the
specified times in the marketplace.

b. Cost Approach
The cost approach which is based on the concept of replacement cost as an indicator of value.
Replacement costs mean the costs which prudently need to be spent to purchase/build the asset
like that of an asset being revalued. To account for the difference, the replacement cost is adjusted
for loss in value due to physical depreciation.

c. Income Approach
Determine the value of an asset as the present value of the future cash flows that the asset can
generate to infinity. An appropriate cash flow is determined, and then divided by a risk-adjusted
discount rate.

13.2 Methodology

a. Collection of Papers and Documents
Following the confirmation of assignments, we collected necessary papers and documents, drawing,
design, title deeds, financial statements, etc. from management of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.

b. Entrance Meeting
On receipt of the information, data, papers and documents, we had an entrance meeting with the
management of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. We obtained all necessary clarification and
explanation required to address the assignment.

c. Verification of Assets

Our team physically visited all the Land area of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd., evaluated and
assessed the location and current condition of those Property. The land is situated at Dhaka -Tangail
(Jamuna Setu) Highway, Mouza-Hartoki Tola, Chandra, P.S-Kaliakoir, Dist-Gazipur adjacent to at
west of Dhaka-Tangail (Jamuna Setu) Highway. Surroundings of the land are at north Commercial
Land, at south Forest Land, at east Forest Land. The area is developing day by day. These areas are
located in the city of Gazipur near Dhaka. Utility services are present on this plot. For this reason,
the value of the land is increasing rapidly day by day. During our inspection, we have found that the
property is under possession of the company.

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) )
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14. Independence

We confirm that Anil Salam Idris & Co, Chartered Accountants, its partners and staffs are independent,
with respect to Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. in accordance with the independence requirements
of the IESBA Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). The principal valuator and other staff involved in the preparation
of the Valuation acted independently and objectively in completing this engagement.

15. Details of Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment
15.1 Asset Based Approach

15.1.1. Valuation of Freehold Land

To determine the basis of valuation of Industrial land in any place especially, in and around Gazipur
area is a difficult and tricky proposition as there is no uniformity in the price of land in any place. It
has been observed on many occasions that plot lying side by side and having equal facilities may fetch
at a different price without any apparent and convincing reason. Again, the value of the land in the
present market condition is a relative term as the seller and buyer lock at it from different
perspectives. Moreover, it differs from a willing seller and an unwilling buyer and similarly, a willing
buyer has a different value than that of an unwilling buyer. More specifically, a plot of industrial land
located in developed areas including adjacent roads and other facilities will attract premium value as
compared to ordinary land in the same city and area.

Kaliakoir, Gazipur the area has been a centre of industrial activity in the city of Gazipur, with land
parcels commanding the highest prices in the nation. Determining land prices are difficult due to
infrequency and confidentiality relating to similar land parcel sales. However, we have already
conducted a valuation exercise of BTA land in question to determine its fair value, through a reputed
surveyor on the valuation cut-off date. We have followed the procedures is sufficient in obtaining the
fair value of land. Thus, fair value of land derived by us has been considered as the fair value reflected
in the valuation report.

Methodology
In working out the fair value of land, we have revalued the land Findings and values obtained through

the report have been deemed sufficient and fair in respect to this valuation engagement.
Summary of Land valuation

The land in question is currently under ownership of the Company, as verified by us. We have taken
into the consideration of development cost to determine the fair value of land and development.
During our verification, we found the land is in P.S - Kaliakoir, Dist: Gazipur, Mouza: Hartoki Tola,
Dhaka Tangail (Jamuna Setu) Highway.

The land valuation summary is as follows:

. | Area Rate per ;
Particulars : Mouza -{ (Decimal) (Decimal) : Amount
| Land | Hartoki Tola | 1,092.50 2,000,000 2,185,000,000
- Total 2,185,000,000

Details of revaluation of Land are presented in Annexure-A

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. ) J
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15.1.2. Valuation of Plant and Machinery
We have taken into consideration the nature and quality of Plant and Machinery and examined the
present condition of the Plant and Machinery as well as nature of maintenance. We have applied the
rate of depreciation, as appropriate and replacement value of those Plant and Machinery considering
various related factors such as prospective longevity of the Plant and Machinery in relation to year of
purchase, technological upgrades, present condition of the Plant and Machinery, specialty, nature of
maintenance and nature of use. The plant and machinery valuation summary are as follows:

. ) Replacement cost ofm;-r" Depreciation Value of Plantand
- Particulars Plant and Machinery | Charges Machinery
Plant and Machinery | 1,097,273,426 | 395,527,748 701,745,678 |

Details of revaluation of Plant and Machinery are presented in Annexure-B

15.1.3. Valuation of Buildings
To establish the fair value of Buildings, we based our assessment on the book values of Buildings. No
revaluation was done on the buildings as their book values were negligible to total assets of
Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. The summary of the valuation of Buildings is presented below:

Particulars Written D_ow_n Value Depreciation Value of Building
i of Building Charges B
Buildings 216,591,365 | - 216,591,365

15.1.4. Valuation of H.0 & Factory Decoration
To establish the fair value of H.O & Factory Decoration, we based our assessment on the book values
of H.O & Factory Decoration. No revaluation was done on the H.O & Factory Decoration as their book
values were negligible to total assets of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. The summary of the
valuation of H.O & Factory Decoration is presented below:

r | Written Down Value .
. [ Depreciation Value of H.O &
_ Particulars | of H.O & Factory gharges Factory Decoration
Decoration | -
1
HO & Factory 5,868,138 [ - 5,868,138
Decoration [ B S

15.1.5. Valuation of Furniture & Fixture
We have determined the fair value of Furniture & Fixture by considering the book values of Furniture
and Fixtures. The summary of the valuation of Furniture & Fixture is as follows:

. : ) —
Particul ert;t:n D?wn V;Iue Depreciation Value of Furniture & |
articulars 0 u_rnlture | Charges Fixture |
Fixture |
| Furniture & Fixture 1,844,279 | - 1,844,279

15.1.6. Valuation of Office Equipment

We have determined the fair value of Office Equipment by considering the book values of Office
Equipment. The summary of the valuation of Office Equipment is as follows:

Particul Written Down Value ) Defxreciation Value of Office
articulars of Office Equipment Charges Equipment
Office Equipment 1,237,618 - 1,237,618

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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15.1.7. Valuation of Motor Car & Vehicles
We have determined the fair value of Motor Car & Vehicles by considering the book values of Motor
Car & Vehicles. The summary of the valuation of Motor Car & Vehicles is as follows:

Annual Report 01.07.23 to 30.06.24 \

o Written Down Value R
’ Particulars of Motor Car & Depreciation Value of M_otor Car &
| . Charges Vehicles
- Vehicles il
~ Motor Car & Vehicles ~ B26,657 | - 826,657 ]

15.1.8. Valuation of Refrigerator
We have determined the fair value of Refrigerator by considering the book values of Refrigerator. The
summary of the valuation of Refrigerator is as follows:

! Particulars Written D‘own Value Depreciation Value of Refrigerator |
5 of Refrigerator | _Charges o
__ Refrigerator 547 I 547 |

15.1.9. Valuation of Television
We have determined the fair value of Television by considering the book values of Television. The
summary of the valuation of Television is as follows:

Particulars Written Do‘?‘? Value | Depreciation Value of Television |
of Television | Charges |
Television 14 [ - 14

15.1.10. Valuation of Photocopy Machine
We have determined the fair value of Photocopy Machine by considering the book values of Photocopy
Machine. The summary of the valuation of Photocopy Machine is as follows:

Written Down Value

Value of Photocopy

—
Particulars of Photocopy ! Deg;gilz;tgon Machine
~_Machine | = " g ) -
| Photocopy Machine 4,486 ] - 4,486 ]

15.1.11. Valuation of Telex Machine
We have determined the fair value of Telex Machine by considering the book values of Telex Machine.

The summary of the valuation of Telex Machine is as follows:

Particulars

Written Down Vaiue |

of Telex Machine |

i Value of Telex

Telex Machine

87

15.1.12. Valuation of Type Writer Machine
We have determined the fair value of Type Writer Machine by considering the book values of Type

Writer Machine. The summary of the valuation of Type Writer Machine is as follows:

Depreciation
Charges Machine
- 87

Written Down Value |

Depreciation

| Value of Type Writer

Particulars of Type Writer : Charges ! Machine
. Machine | _ |
|_Type Writer Machine 1,126 | - j 1,126

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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15.1.13. Valuation of Fax Machine

We have determined the fair value of Fax Machine by considering the book values of Fax Machine. The
summary of the valuation of Fax Machine is as follows:

—_—

' Particulars

- S
L Fax Machine

Written Down Value Depreciation
of Fax Machine Charges
145 — 1 -

Value of Fax Machine
145

15.1.14. Valuation of Electric Fan
We have determined the fair value of Electric Fan by considering the book values of Electric Fan. The
summary of the valuation of Electric Fan is as follows:

’7 Particulars | Written Dm:vn Value | Depreciation Value of Electric Fan
. | of Electric Fan | Charges _
| Electric Fan _! 4,441 | - 4,441

15.1.15. Valuation of Amin Scales
We have determined the fair value of Amin Scales by considering the book values of Amin Scales. The
summary of the valuation of Amin Scales is as follows:

—

‘ Particulars

Written Down Value |
of Amin Scales

L Amin Scales

351 |

Depreciation
Charges

Value of Amin Scales

15.1.16. Valuation of Computer Machine
We have determined the fair value of Computer Machine by considering the book values of Computer
Machine. The summary of the valuation of Computer Machine is as follows:

—

| Written Down Value

-

Value of Computer

[
Particulars of Computer | Depreciation .
. | Charges | Machine
L _Machine L |
| Computer Machine 37,037 - | 37,037

15.1.17. Valuation of Electrification
We have determined the fair value of Electrification by considering the book values of Electrification.

The summary of the valuation of Electrification is as follows:

15.1.18. Valuation of Air Cooler

Particulars Written Down Value | Depreciation Value of ]
of Electrification Charges Electrification
Electrification 261,924 . 261,924

We have determined the fair value of Air Cooler by considering the book values of Air Cooler. The
summary of the valuation of Air Cooler is as follows:

. Written Down Value Depreciation ' .
1
Particulars of Air Cooler Charges ) l _Yalue of Air Cooler
L Air Cooler 2,956 . 2,956

( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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15.1.19. Valuation of Time Recorder Machine
We have determined the fair value of Time Recorder Machine by considering the book values of Time
Recorder Machine. The summary of the valuation of Time Recorder Machine is as follows:

- ' Written Down Value
Particulars of Time Recorder
Machine

: Depreciation
Charges
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Value of Time
Recorder Machine

Time Recorder
Machine

1,271

I
|
|
|
|
!

1,271

15.1.20. Valuation of Gas Line

16. Summary Result of Revaluation

We have determined the fair value of Gas Line by considering the book values of Gas Line. The
summary of the valuation of Gas Line is as follows:

Value of Gas Line

| Particulars Written Dow:n Value Depreciation
- ofGasLine Charges
, Gas Line 696,603 B

696,603 |

The result of this revaluation is the appreciation in the value of the Property, Plant and Equipment of
Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. by an amount of Tk. 3,114,124,723 as detailed in as follows:

17. Valuer's Opinion

18. Fairness Opinion

‘ Particulars | cosl:jl?;::ligz‘:gtlue Deg;:?gitsmn Value of assets
'Land 2,185,000,000 | - | 2,185,000,000
| Plant and Machinery 1,097,273,426 | 395,527,748 | 701,745,678
| Buildings | 216,591,365 - 216,591,365
| H.O & Factory Decoration | 5,868,138 B - 5,868,138
| Furniture & Fixture | 1,844,279 - - 1,844,279
| Office Equipment - _L 1,237,618 - 1,237,618
| Motor Car & Vehicles i 826,657 - 826,657 |
_ Refrigerator ' 547 - 547
| Television ) I B 14 - 14
| Photocopy Machine 4,486 | - 4,486
_TelexMachine | I - 87 |
| Type Writer Machine ' 1,126 - 1,126 |
| Fax Machine 145 - 145 |
Electric Fan 4,441 - 4,441
| Amin Scales [ 351 - | 351 |
Computer Machine | 37,037 - | 37,037
Electrification I 261,924 - 261,924
| Air Cooler 2,956 - 2,956
| Time Recorder Machine 1,271 - 1,271 |
| Gas Line 696,603 - 696,603
| Grand Total  3,509,652,471 395,527,748 | 3,114,124,723

\- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )

The Fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment stands at Tk. 3,114,124,723.

The valuation conducted is in compliance with the International Valuation Standards (IVS). We have
upheld the fundamental principles of ethical conduct, namely integrity, objectivity, competence,
confidentiality and professional behavior throughout the valuation process.
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19. Concluding Remarks
Our opinion has been formed after analyzing the data provided by Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd.
We have utilized our professional expertise and judgment to arrive at this conclusion, which is subject
to the Statement of Assumptions and Limiting Conditions presented earlier in this report.

Additionally, it should be noted that the valuation of the Property, Plant and Equipment are reliant on
numerous subjective factors. Thus, slight changes in any of the parameters utilized may result in
variations in the presented value. Therefore, it is expected that the management keeps in mind the
factors discussed in the report while reading it.

Finally, we would like to express our gratitude for the cooperation and courtesy extended to our
representatives during the course of our assignment.

- ( Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. )
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Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Limited submitted a renewal copy of Mamership
certificate of Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC)

to the Exchange and Published through the Annual Report.

/— Annwal Report 01.07.23 1o 30.06.24

CERTIFICATE WITH BAPLC

RENEWAL
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BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED
29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani C/A, Dhaka.

PROXY FORM

WV et R et
O s being a shareholder of Bangladesh Thai Aluminium Ltd. do hereby appoint

as mylour proxy, to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 45th annual General Meeting (AGM) of the

members of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 31 December 2024 at 11:30 am by using Hybrid System in
combination of physical presence at Trust Milonayation, 545, Old Airport Road, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka-1208,

Bangladesh and also using digital platform at the link:https://bdthaialu45th.hybridagmbd.net

adjournment thereof.
Revenue
' Stamp '
i Tk, 100.00 :
(Signature of the Shareholder) (Signature of Proxy) : :

R.Folia/BO ID No.

N, 0f Shares NEIO ...t st ss s Dated: ...

N.B.: This Form of Proxy, duly signed (as recorded with the company), stamped and completed must be sent through email
to the Share Depatment of the Company at btashare1990@gmail.com at least 72 hours before the day and time fixed for the Annual
General Meeting (AGM).

BANGLADESH THAI ALUMINIUM LIMITED
29, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani C/A, Dhaka.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

| do hereby submit the Attendance Slip in connection with the 45th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of the
Company will be held on Tuesday, 31 December 2024 at 11:30 am by using Hybrid System in combination of physical presence
at Trust Milonayation, 545, Old Airport Road, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka-1206, Bangladesh and also using digital
platform at the link:https://bdthaialu45th.hybridagmbd.net

Full Name of the Member:

R.Folio/BO 1D No.

N, 0Ff SRAMES NEID ..ot ettt e s e e

(Signature of Proxy) (Signature of the Shareholder)

DAt o

N.B.: Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy under Hybrid System are requested to complete the
Attendance Slip and deposit the same at the Registered Office of the Company before the meeting.
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